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Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

Trustees’ Report for the year ended 31 August 2023

The Trustees (who are also the Directors of the Company under company law) present their Annual Report
together with the audited financial statements of the Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust (the “Trust”) for the period
from 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The annual report serves the purposes of both a Trustees’ report
and a Directors’ report, including a Strategic Report under company law.

At 31 August 2023, the Trust operated 43 primary academies in the area covered by the Oxford Diocese (which
covers Berkshire, Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Milton Keynes), with a combined pupil capacity of 10,176
and 8,641 pupils currently enrolled based on the October 2023 school census. Two additional schools joined the
Trust during this period.

Structure, governance and management
CONSTITUTION

The Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust (the “Trust”) is a private company limited by guarantee with no share capital
and is an exempt charity. The Trust’s Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing
documents of the Trust. Members of the Trust are the Diocesan Board of Education (acting corporately), the
subscribers to the memorandum who were two individual Members of the Diocesan Board of Education and
there may be up to five other persons appointed by the Diocesan Board of Education. In addition, the Members,
with the consent of the Diocesan Board of Education, may agree unanimously to appoint additional Members.

Details of the Trustees who served during the period are included in the Reference and Administrative Details
on Page 1.

The Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust was incorporated on 13 July 2012. It is a Multi-Academy Trust (MAT) and has
in place a Master Funding Agreement with the Department for Education and separate Supplemental Funding
Agreements in respect of each school within the Trust.

There were 41 academies within the Trust at 1 September 2022, in order of joining, as follows:

e John Henry Newman C of E Academy, Littlemore
e Grove C of E Primary School

* The Hendreds C of E School

e St Christopher's C of E Primary School, Cowley
Wheatley C of E Primary School

St Peter’s C of E Middle School, Old Windsor

e Burchetts Green C of E Infants School

o St Luke's C of E Primary School, Maidenhead
e St Peter’s C of E Primary School, Alvescot

e St Christopher’s C of E Primary School, Langford
e The Blake, C of E Primary School, Witney

e Bampton C of E Primary School

¢ North Leigh C of E Primary School

e Burford Primary School

e The Batt C of E Primary School, Witney

St Mary's C of E Infants School, Witney

Brize Norton Primary School

Holyport C of E Primary School

Dr South's C of E Primary Schoaol, Islip

Tackley C of E Primary School

Datchet St Mary’s C of E Primary Academy

e Leafield C of E Primary School
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* Wroxton C of E Primary School

e Dr Radcliffe's C of E Primary School, Steeple Aston
e South Moreton Primary School

® Deddington C of E Primary School

* Kidmore End C of E Primary School

» North Hinksey C of E Primary School

e St Mary’s C of E Primary School, Banbury

o Northbourne C of E Primary School

e St Nicholas C of E Infants School, Wallingford

s Fir Tree Junior School, Wallingford

e Wootton-by-Woodstock C of E Primary School

e Benson C of E Primary School

e Blewbury C of E Primary School

o Christopher Rawlins C of E Primary School, Adderbury
e Tyndale Community School, Cowley

e St Frideswide C of E Primary School

e New Town Primary School, Reading

e New Christ Church C of E Primary School, Reading
e StJohn’s C of E Primary School, Reading

During the year 2022/23, two additional schools joined the Trust:

e St Laurence C of E Primary School, Warborough 1 October 2022
e All Saints C of E Junior School, Maidenhead 1 January 2023

Wooton by Woodstock C of E Primary School closed on 31 August 2023.

MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each Member of the Trust undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Trust in the event of it being wound up
while they are a Member, or within one year after they cease to be a Member, such amount as may be required,
not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a Member.

TRUSTEES' INDEMNITIES

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, every Trustee or other officer or auditor of the Trust is
indemnified out of the assets of the Trust against any liability incurred by him/her in that capacity in defending
any proceeding whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in favour or in which relief is granted to
him/her by the court from liability for negligence, default, breach of duty of trust in relation to the affairs of the
Trust.

The Trust has opted into the Department of Education’s Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA), an alternative to
insurance where UK government funds cover insurable losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Academy business, and
provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees’ and officers’ indemnity element
from the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Trust’s principal activity during the period was the provision of schools both with and without a designated
Church of England religious character, offering a broad and balanced curriculum. The schools serve children
aged from 3 to 14.
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METHOD OF RECRUITMENT AND APPOINTMENT OR ELECTION OF TRUSTEES

Up to twelve Trustees are appointed to the Board by the Members. In addition, the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
and the Diocesan Director of Education (DDE) are eligible to be Trustees. The Trustees, with the consent of the
Diocesan Board of Education, may appoint up to two Trustees for such term up to a maximum of four years and
upon such conditions as they shall think fit. Trustees (with the exception of co-opted and ex officio Trustees,
including the CEOQ) are appointed for a period of four years but are eligible for reappointment provided the
necessary criteria are met in each case.

Each school within the Trust has an advisory body, as required by the Master Funding Agreement. These are
called Local Governing Bodies ("LGBs") and their functions are set out in a scheme of delegation by the Trust.
Members of the LGBs are appointed primarily by the Trustees (with some exceptions allowing for the election
of parent representatives etc.) and are accountable to the Trustees accordingly. The Trustees are also entitled
to sit on the LGBs in an ex officio capacity.

The Trust has an Executive Committee whose remit includes scrutinising the skill set of existing Trustees of the
Board and to identify potential new Trustees as appropriate, to recommend to Members for appointment.
Members consider the recommendations, taking the skill set of existing Trustees into account, and a full
induction process is put into place once the appointment is confirmed.

The skills and experience of existing Trustees are regularly recorded and audited. In addition, some committees
of the Board have co-opted members from LGBs and elsewhere.

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ADOPTED FOR THE INDUCTION AND TRAINING OF TRUSTEES

As part of the induction process, all Trustees are provided with various documents to support their
understanding of the workings of the Trust. These would include:

e Trust's governing documents (i.e. the Memorandum and Articles of Association) as well as access to the
Master Funding Agreement and Supplemental Funding Agreements for the academies;
other documents such as minutes, accounts, budgets and other documents relating to the Trust;
relevant documentation issued by the Department for Education, ESFA, the Charity Commission and their
professional advisers as necessary are provided to enable the Trustees to meet their legal obligations and
follow best practice in respect of their role as Trustees (and Company Directors,) for example the
Academy Trust Handbook.

All Trustees (both new and existing) are encouraged to make visits to the schools within the Trust, and to attend
leadership briefings and the leadership conferences, so they can meet headteachers and Local Governing Body
members in both a formal and an informal context. They also have access to Governorhub (an online service for
LGBs and MAT Trustees for communication and coordination) and are offered regular opportunities for training,
both internal and external to help further develop their skills and understanding of the Trust. In addition, the
Board holds strategy days to which Members are invited.

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The Board of Trustees governs the activities of the Trust and oversees the work of each school's LGB. The
structure consists of the Board and seven sub-committees.

e Finance

e Ethos and Governance

e Education, Quality, Standards and Impact

e Pay and Personnel

e Estates and Safeguarding

e Audit

e Executive
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The Trustees are also ultimately responsible for the strategic direction of the Trust ensuring that its aims are met
and its ethos maintained. Specifically, this includes setting general policy, adopting an annual plan and budget,
monitoring the Trust’s financial performance and educational outcomes. The Trustees are also responsible for
making major decisions about the direction of the Trust.

As briefly outlined above, the LGBs oversee the work and outcomes of individual schools within the Trust. These
LGBs are composed of a mix of local people including staff, parents, members of the local faith community,
where appropriate, and others appointed by the Trust for their skills and experience. They act as a critical
support to the headteacher and the school. They are responsible for ensuring high standards of education and
financial effectiveness; they review the overall impact of each school within the community it serves and are
responsible for ensuring the Trust’s ethos and vision are upheld.

The Senior Leadership Team of the Trust is composed of the CEQ, the Deputy CEQ, the Principal Schools Adviser,
the Chief Financial Officer, and the Head of HR. They lead and manage the Trust, setting strategy and
implementing policy in conjunction with the Board of Trustees generally. Headteachers and Deputy
headteachers, as employees of the Trust, lead and manage the individual schools.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR SETTING PAY AND REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The Trust is concerned to ensure that it recruits and retains high quality employees whilst ensuring value for
money.

For centrally employed staff, roles are benchmarked externally to ensure consistency and objectivity and further
internal controls are applied by the HR and finance teams, supported by Trustees. Similar to the situation in
schools, a limited element of incremental pay progression is available to centrally employed staff subject to the
delivery of agreed performance objectives.

For employees based in schools, responsibility for setting levels of pay are delegated to the local school, subject
to adherence to nationally agreed conditions, e.g. The School Teachers’ Pay and Conditions Document.
Additional scrutiny is provided by the Trust through its direct involvement in senior leadership appointments.

TRADE UNION FACILITY TIME

The number of employees who were relevant union officials during the relevant period is 0. The percentage of
time, and the percentage of the pay bill spent on facility time is therefore 0%.

STATEMENT OF ENGAGEMENT WITH EMPLOYEES (INCLUDING DISABLED PERSONS)

Trustees play an active role in the organisation, with each assigned to a particular hub, and they are encouraged
to visit those schools within their area. In addition to in person visits, trustees host regular on-line meetings
between trustees and LGB chairs in their hub, and all Headteachers new in post or new to the Trust meet with
the Chair of Trustees.

On a termly basis, briefings are held for both headteachers and Chairs of Local Governing Bodies which central
team officers and Trustees attend, and Trustees are also involved in headteacher conferences held throughout
the year. Each of these events provide an opportunity for dialogue and networking and have been used
extensively to share the vision and values of ODST with the scope for attendees to provide feedback. Schools
have also been encouraged to share the organisational values at a local level.

As mentioned above, the Trust runs several different committees which include some school representation.
One of these is the Pay and Personnel Committee, which meets up to 6 times a year. As its name suggests this
is focussed on staffing matters and provides Trustees with the chance to hear feedback from schools (and the
wider education network in Oxfordshire/former Berkshire of which ODST is a part) and to input into activities
such as well-being and learning programmes. The remit of this committee also includes pay policies and terms
and conditions for school employees, although to date Trustees have agreed that the continuity of national
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arrangements in ODST schools is the correct approach, and on that basis the major decisions that affect the
interests of employees are made externally to ODST. In a similar vein as a charitable, non-profit making
organisation, the scope to involve others in ‘performance’ at a wider level is limited, but locally leadership teams
and Local Governing Bodies acting on behalf of the Trustees, will share details of their school development plan
and review data with their respective teams and seek their involvement in delivering continuous improvement.
This committee considers staffing data, including exit interviews, and benchmarks numbers of staff leaving Trust
employment from different sectors and the reasons for it. A staff survey is carried out periodically and findings
reported.

The Trust reviews all applications from candidates on their individual merits. Once an offer has been made to a
candidate, where that individual subsequently discloses on a pre-employment questionnaire that they have a
disability the school will consider all reasonable adjustments to facilitate their integration into the position.

STATEMENT OF ENGAGEMENT WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS AND OTHERS IN A BUSINESS
RELATIONSHIP WITH THE TRUST

The Trustees are committed to schools serving their communities, so a local procurement strategy is pursued
wherever possible. This supports the Trust’s values of community, service and local empowerment and the
procurement of services such as provision and support of ICT, grounds maintenance, cleaning and catering is
therefore delegated to schools. This enables the specific local needs of each unique institution to be at the centre
of provision, and helps reduce our carbon footprint, as well as supporting local business partners. Decisions
about which services to procure centrally are made taking local provision into account, so as not to cut across
existing, successful arrangements, including those among schools not in ODST. Trustees are determined to set
the best example to pupils by working with ethical suppliers, ensuring the working conditions for contracted
staff are fair, and materials are sourced responsibly and sustainably. Trustees receive regular briefings on the
requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook from their legal advisers and all new trustees are inducted on its
implications.

UK GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS AND ENERGY USE DATA FOR 2021/22

The 2022/23 consumption figures are showing a reduction in usage compared to 2021/22, with schools being
ever more aware of the cost of energy and the climate impact. The intensity ratio (calculated on a per pupil
basis) has reduced to 0.16, compared to 0.17 for 2021/22.

2022/23 2021/22
Energy consumption used to calculate emissions (kWh) 7,344,444 7,677,643
Scope 1 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Gas consumption 909.60 959.84
Owned transport — minibuses 1.29 0.99
Total Scope 1 910.89 960.82
Scope 2 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Purchased electricity 469.83 455.99
Scope 3 emissions in metric tonnes CO2e
Business travel in employee owned vehicles 20.44 13.74
Total Gross Emissions in Metric Tonnes CO2e 1,401.16 1,430.55
Intensity Ratio Tonnes CO2e per pupil 0.16 0.17

QUANTIFICATION AND REPORTING METHODOLOGY
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We have followed the HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines including streamlined energy and
carbon reporting guidance March 2019. We have used the 2023 UK Government Emission Conversion Factors
for Greenhouse Gas Company Reporting.

INTENSITY MEASUREMENT

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per pupil, the
recommended ratio for the sector.

MEASURES TAKEN TO IMPROVE ENERGY EFFICIENCY

The central energy contract, which has another year to run, was signed in 2019 and decisions were fully informed
by the ODST values of community and service. The electricity supply, through the contract, is from 100%
renewable and sustainable sources and this provision is complemented by a staged installation programme of
smart meters to all the schools’ electricity supplies. Once fully rolled out, schools will be able to monitor their
energy usage in ‘real time’ and have immediate management information about their energy usage.

We have continued to use video conferencing technology for some trust-wide staff meetings and LGB member
training, which began during the lockdowns, and hope that this will continue to reduce transport.

CONNECTED ORGANISATIONS, INCLUDING RELATED PARTY/ TRANSACTIONS

The Trustees are appointed in accordance with the skills and experience each can offer to the Trust. Some are
drawn from other organisations in the Diocesan family, local employers or other organisations which from time
to time have dealings with the Trust in the course of their work. All transactions between any Trustee’s
employers and/or organisations and the Trust were properly procured through an open and fair process and
carried out at arm’s length. All material transactions were undertaken at not more than cost. A register of each
Trustee’s business interests is also maintained.

During the period, the Trust obtained a number of essential support services from the Oxford Diocesan Board
of Education (a corporate Member of the Trust) at a cost of £79,604 (2021/2022: £55,852). These services
included training and SLA for Church schools.

Until April 2023, the Trust also agreed, on an annual basis, for ODBE to act as the body responsible for
maintaining school buildings within the academy trust funded by the School Condition Allocation (SCA) made
available to ODBE, on behalf of ODST, from the ESFA. From April 2023, the SCA funds come directly to ODST and
following a tender process, ODBE were awarded the contract to manage our SCA programme. ODBE charged
project management fees for the works undertaken on the Trust’s premises during the year totalling £205,450
(2022: £204,680). These fees are entirely funded by the SCA funding allocated to the academy trust.

The Trust is aware of the Academy Trust Handbook requirements for related party transactions, including
notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and the need to obtain their approval where

required.

Full details of related party transactions can be found at note 26.
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Objectives and Activities

OBJECTS AND AIMS

The Trust’s object is specifically restricted to:

Advance for the public benefit education in the United Kingdom, in particular but without prejudice to the
generality of the foregoing by establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing schools which
shall offer a broad and balanced curriculum and which shall include:

a) Church of England schools designated as such which shall be conducted in accordance with the
principles, practices and tenets of the Church of England both generally and in particular in relation to
arranging for religious education and daily acts of worship (as required by the relevant Funding
Agreement) and having regard to any advice issued by the Diocesan Board of Education; and

b) Other academies whether with or without a designated religious character; but in relation to each of
the academies to recognise and support their individual ethos, whether or not designated Church of
England.

OBIJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND ACTIVITIES

At the heart of the vision for schools in the Trust is a belief in educational excellence. Itis the strategic objective
of the Trust to create a family of outstanding schools. This covers a range of potential members of the family:
including good schools looking for a group option (including schools from particular geographical areas which
may be converting together), schools which are graded by Ofsted as “Requires Improvement,” schools which
require more ‘hands on’ sponsorship and brand-new schools.

The Trust’s vision for education centres on our sense of a community which works for the common good. The
Trust’s key values are identified as:

o Inclusivity: Our schools embrace equality of opportunity and a whole inclusive approach to
education. We believe every person matters.

e Empowerment: A fully functioning community is one where each person knows their own value
and potential. Our job as educators is to enable that potential to flourish; to create
a culture where children can be nurtured to be the best they can be. We believe
this is best done by empowering each other to contribute the best we have to give.

e Community: Communities are important and flourish best when relationships are strong. We
believe our schools and the people in them are a vital part of many different
communities, all of which can be enriched as we work together.

e Abundant We want our schools to be places where children are loved, nurtured and learn to
Living: live well. We believe all people should be enabled to fulfil their whole potential,
not just professionally and academically, but also creatively, morally and

spiritually.
e Service: Our schools are outward-facing communities where we all learn to serve others

and contribute to the common good.

PUBLIC BENEFIT

As set out in the objects in the Articles of Association, the Trust is dedicated to advancing education for the
public benefit and in so doing it serves pupils, staff, parents and their local communities by providing academies
with the highest levels of academic rigour and pastoral care, with opportunities provided for spiritual growth
and intellectual enquiry.

The Trust seeks to live out our Common Vision for the Common Good by establishing and running schools,
which themselves become communities where gifts can be shared, where the emphasis is on what can be

g



Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

contributed rather than what can be received, and where each is given according to need. The Trust’s schools
are places where children and young people can learn the value of service and of human endeavour, where
they can be sure they are valued for who they are and where they can be supported to be the best they can
be.

The Trustees have complied with their duty under the Charities Act 2011 to have due regard to the guidance
on public benefit published by the Charity Commission in exercising their powers and duties as charity Trustees.
They have referred to this guidance when reviewing the Trust’s aims and objectives and in planning future
activities.

Strategic Report

ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE

In 2022-23 we welcomed two schools to the trust, St Laurence CE Primary, Warborough and All Saints CE
Junior School, Maidenhead. Both were sponsored schools and now have strong support and school
improvement plans in place. All Saints has also benefited from additional leadership resource from two
experienced ODST headteachers.

To ensure the ongoing quality of education for children in our smallest school, in 2022-23 we took the decision
to merge Wootton by Woodstock CE Primary with Tackley CE Primary to allow the children to become part of a
wider community of peers. This strengthened their opportunities for group-work, turn-taking and other
activities for which being in a class amongst more children of their own age group is critical. A transition plan
which put the needs of the children firmly at the centre was delivered successfully, with all children now
thriving at Tackley CE Primary, and so Woodstock CE Primary officially closed on 31st August 2023.

11 ODST schools were inspected by Ofsted inspection during 2022-23, and we are very pleased that all were
judged to be Good or Outstanding. One school which joined the trust with an RI judgement is now judged
Good in all categories; two were rated Good with Outstanding features, and two retained a judgement of
Outstanding. Five church schools were subject to SIAMS inspections, all outcomes were Good or Excellent.

School Performance:
Below is a summary of the academic performance for our schools this year:
- Early Years Foundation Stage: Approximately 70% of ODST’'s pupils reached a Good Level of
Development (GLD) by the end of the foundation stage.
- Y1 phonics check: 74%
- KS1 SATS: the percentage of 7-year-old children meeting the expected standard at the end of KS1 in
reading was 63%, in writing was 54% and in mathematics was 63%.
- KS2 SATS: The percentage of ODST pupils achieving the expected standard in reading was 73%, writing
68% and mathematics 69%

We have continued to invest in our school improvement capacity and during the accounting period this
continued to be enhanced by five in-post headteachers working 1 day per week as advisers to other schools.
This has enabled stronger support and particularly for our focus schools with specific challenges. It has also
provided a valuable development opportunity for some of our experienced school leaders.

Subject leader networks have embedded the support for middle leaders to deliver effective curricula and
ensure impact. This focus on the wider curriculum supports our core value of abundant living by providing
children with the chance to enjoy and fulfil their potential in arts, music, sports, technology and humanities as
well as achieve in core subjects. This year for example, the music network provided a valuable opportunity for
pupils from ODST schools to sing together at Christ Church Cathedral. We have also ensured a strong uptake
for our mathematics and English CPD designed for class teachers and teaching assistants.

10
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In 2022-23 we also added extra resource within the School Improvement team to support safeguarding,
establishing the ODST safeguarding standard, which brings clarity to each element of the process for schools
alongside a cycle of safeguarding audits to check compliance with whole trust support for designated
safeguarding leads. Safeguarding was judged effective in all Ofsted inspections during the period.

We have expanded our executive headship arrangements during the period, to enable smaller schools to
benefit from experienced leadership in a cost-effective fashion. This has also enabled our excellent school
leaders to be retained and developed within the Trust. Individual plans were carefully implemented for each
unique context, and we established an Executive Leaders Network to share best practice and provide support.

Our first cohort of future leaders on the pathway to the National Professional Qualification for Senior
Leadership (NPQSL) successfully completed their course in July 2023, and the second cohort has started. ODST
took part in a pilot Ofsted inspection of the course and feedback was positive.

We have strengthened our training and development offer for all ODST leaders and aspiring leaders, with the
introduction in 2022 of the leadership seminar programme which comprised 17 sessions covering a range of
topics from ‘How to develop talent in your staff’ to ‘Building relationships and managing complaints’ and
‘Helping achievement in learners with English as an additional language.” We have also offered 1:1 coaching
for some leaders and aspiring leaders and we also delivered more training to local governing bodies than ever
before.

We have added capacity and professional development in the central HR team to ensure the strong service
and relationships are in place to support 42 school workforces.

We carried out a full staff survey across all ODST employees in June 2023. This generated a substantial amount
of information relating to staff wellbeing and effective workforce deployment. We are proud that the
strongest sentiment to come out of the qualitative feedback was how much staff enjoy working with the
children in their care, reflecting their dedication to delivering the best for all pupils.

We have added central capacity in finance and communications, and have successfully integrated capital
works into the direct remit of the trust, following changes to the funding route from April 2023.

PROMOTING THE SUCCESS OF THE COMPANY (SECTION 172 STATEMENT)

The Trustees are fully aware of their responsibilities to promote the success of the Trust as a Company in
accordance with section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 and the Board has reflected on how the Trust engages
with its stakeholders and what opportunities exist for enhancement in the future. For example, all Trustees are
allocated to a hub of schools and expected to visit their schools, engaging with children, staff, school leaders and
representatives of the Local Governing Body, both face-to-face and on-line. Trustees also resolved to ensure as
many as possible are present at leadership conferences (held twice yearly for all heads). In considering the skill
make-up of the Trustees, the Members seek to ensure that key stakeholders are both represented and
understood by the Board.

The current Board of Trustees for example, includes current and recent parents of children in ODST schools,
current and recent Local Governing Body members, Trustees with experience of school leadership, key
personnel from the Oxford Diocese, both lay and ordained. In turn, the Trustees welcome headteachers, Local
Governing Body members, and other members of the community to Board committees. The Trustees ensure
that the Strategic Plan is rooted in its vision and values and they set Key Performance Indicators for success
along those lines. Decisions about the focus of strategic planning are made collaboratively with Chairs of Local
Governing Bodies and Headteachers before being signed off at Board level.

The Trustees understand that educational attainment and pupil progress are key concerns for staff, parents and
pupils of ODST schools and they focus their work on this through both the full Board meetings and their

11
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committee structure — where the Education Quality Standards and Impact (EQSI) committee is of key strategic
importance. Clearly, pupil welfare, safeguarding and a rounded education which enables pupils to engage with
their local community is also significant and trustees ensure these issues are addressed. As well as regular
attendance at governor briefings and headteacher events, Trustees have invited chairs of Local Governing Bodies
to Board meetings, to hear first-hand the issues that are relevant at school level. This is in addition to summary
reporting by members of the central team.

Through all these means, Trustees are aware of the longer-term challenges faced by very small schools, which
has led to future plans to explore ways in which much closer collaboration between small village schools might
enhance sustainability, and the on-going challenges of financial constraints.

GOING CONCERN

Based on the budget and cash flow, the Trustees have a reasonable expectation that the Trust and the schools
currently within it have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For
this reason, the Trustees continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting
Policies in note 1 to the financial statements. '

The Balance Sheet also recognises a £4,375,000 (2022: £8,489,000) defined benefit pension scheme liability as
required by the relevant accounting standards. This liability arises from the deficit in the Local Government
Pension Scheme ("LGPS") that is attributable to the Trust. The Trust is not currently required to make
accelerated payments to meet this liability, but were arrangements to change, the Trust would have difficulty
in making such payments without its public funding being adjusted to meet this liability and the Trust would
then expect that cost to be covered by its public funding alongside all other reasonable costs of the education
it provides. The Trustees, in any case, have noted that the Government has provided a guarantee that in the
event of a school closure, any outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education.

At the end of the financial period, the total funds of the Trust stood at a net surplus of £25,902,905(2022: net
surplus of £19,525,195, as restated). However, in considering whether the Trust is a going concern, the more
relevant figure is the net current assets of the Trust (which exclude the fixed assets and the defined benefit
pension scheme liability), which at balance sheet date totalled £9,472,412 (2022: £7,495,876).

The Trustees are pleased to report that they believe the Trust is in good financial health and is an active going
concern. They base this on the evidence of an operating cashflow surplus, cash balance at year end of
£11,990,805 (2022: £8,647,218), achieving a balanced budget in 2022/23 and the setting of a balanced budget
after reserves for 2023/24. The finance team regularly manage and update a 12-month cash flow forecast,
which supports this assessment.

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

As well as monitoring educational improvement the Board also monitor other key performance indicators.

In terms of key financial indicators, the Board has carefully monitored the operational financial position
throughout the year by means of monthly management reporting. An annual surplus of 1.01%, on this basis,
was achieved compared to a budgeted surplus of 0.06% for 2022/23. The balance of revenue reserves held at
the year-end was equivalent to 1.59 months of operational expenditure compared to the target set of 1.51
months of operational expenditure.

The Trustees’ medium-term aim is to balance the Trust's budget in year and to build sufficient reserves to
protect its schools against the financial impact of unplanned costs such as urgent and unforeseen capital
repairs. However, they are also mindful that this must be balanced by the responsibility to use the public funds
delegated to them for the benefit of the pupils currently on roll in the Trust's schools, and to ensure that all
balances held, whether by the Trust itself or by its schools, have a clearly identifiable, transparent and
documented purpose.
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The Trust's Funding Agreement is.not subject to a specific carry forward limit on the amount of General Annual
Grant (GAG) funding. One financial performance indicator is the level of reserves held at the balance sheet
date and, in particular, the amount of GAG funding carried forward at the balance sheet date. At 31 August
2023, the balance of the GAG Restricted Fund was £1,510,882 (2022: £914,690).

Staffing costs are another key performance indicator for the Academy Trust and the percentage of total staff
costs (excluding LGPS FRS102 pension cost charges) to total educational grant funding (being GAG funded plus
other operating educational grants from the ESFA and/or Local Authority) for the year was 84.8% (2022:
83.8%), while the percentage of staff costs (excluding LGPS FRS102 pension cost charges) to total educational
operations costs (excluding depreciation and LGPS FRS102 pension cost charges) was 79.3% (2022: 79.8%).

After adjusting for the transfer of the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) deficits on transfer of schools
from existing academy trust and on conversion, and the further FRS102 adjustments to the LGPS deficit in the
period, the Trust made a surplus for the year on its restricted general funds of £287,276 (2022: deficit of
£1,516,975). The surplus carried forward on the restricted general funds, excluding the pension reserve, is
£2,092,004 (2022: £1,804,728). The surplus consists substantially of educational grants received in the year
ended 31 August 2023. The expenditure that will be funded by these grants falls largely in the current year,
although some may be held over until the following year if the Trust’s plans require it.

Financial review

REVIEW OF ACTIVITIES

The Trustees approved an overall budget for the period from 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023. The Trust
monitors finances on a regular basis to ensure budgets are achieved. It also ensures that measures are in place
to verify that all funds and grants are used for the purposes for which they were applied for or given, and to
ensure the ongoing viability of the Trust and its schools.

The Trust received income into its Unrestricted Fund, Restricted General Funds and Fixed Asset Fund during
the year ended 31 August 2023. While the Statement of Financial Activities sets out the income and
expenditure of these various funds for the year, this includes a number of one-off items of income and
expenditure associated with those schools that joined the Trust during the year as well as FRS102 pension costs
adjustments and depreciation charges.

As Restated
Operational Results 2023 2022
Net (expenditure)/income in Statement of Financial Activities £697,710 £(6,677,120)
Less transfer from Local Authority on conversion* £135,697 £(7,587)
Add/(Less) transfer from existing academy trust* - £1,130,411
Capital grants and donations income £(4,542,299) £(3,112,563)
Improvements to diocesan property occupied by the academy trust
treated as grant expenditure £2,311,005 £2,255,855
Depreciation £666,133 £604,587
Impairment - £1,414,849
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions £890,000 £4,541,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance costs £378,000 £557,000
Total Operational Surplus £536,236 £706,432
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* On transfer of schools from local authorities or other existing academy trusts, ODST recognises these as a
gain or loss in the year based on the fair value of the net assets or liabilities that are assumed by ODST on the
transfer. A breakdown of these is included in Note 27 to the accounts with the most significant elements being
the assumption of the net local government pension schemes attributed to the employees associated with the
schools and the fair value of land and buildings. In the 2022-23 financial year, the two transferring schools are
situated on church land and therefore no value was recognised in the accounts for land and buildings for these
school. A net loss was recognised in the year due to the pension scheme liabilities.

Restricted General Fund

The majority of the Trust’s income was received through Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) recurrent
revenue grants into the Restricted General Fund, the use of which is restricted to the Trust's charitable
activities, being its educational operations. General Restricted Fund income for the year was £50,423,477
(2021/2022: £44,194,935); expenditure against these funds was £51,702,201 (2021/2022: £54,693,910), giving
a restricted revenue fund deficit for the year of £1,278,724 (2021/2022: deficit of £10,498,975) before transfers
to the Restricted Fixed Asset Fund and actuarial gains and losses on the defined benefit pension scheme. This
deficit includes net defined benefit pension scheme liabilities transferred to the Trust from the schools that
joined the Trust during the year of £303,000 (2022: £3,884,000) and a further pension cost adjustment under
FRS102 of £1,263,000 (2022: £5,098,000). Excluding these pension scheme liabilities and adjustments, the
surplus on the General Restricted Fund for the year was £287,276(2022: deficit of £1,516,975).

Unrestricted Funds

Unrestricted income for the year was £3,707,529 (2022: £3,253,203). Expenditure against the fund was
£3,446,617 (2022: £427,801) for the period, giving an Unrestricted Fund surplus for the year of £260,912 (2022:
£2,825,402).

Restricted Fixed Asset Fund

The Restricted Fixed Asset Fund balance is reduced by the annual depreciation charge over the expected useful
life of the assets concerned in line with the Trust’s depreciation policy and capital expenditure treated as grants
to Site Trustees at church schools. Income recognised in the year in respect of this fund, including the value of
the assets transferred from the schools that have joined the Trust this year was £4,692,660 (2022: £5,274,154).
There is a £996,453 (2022: £2,411,302) Restricted Fixed Asset Fund period end surplus after transfers between
funds.

Total Fund Balances

The total fund balances as at 31 August 2023 were a net surplus of £25,902,905 (2022: £20,940,044 net surplus).
This is composed of £5,027,552 (2022: £4,766,640) in Unrestricted Funds, £2,282,996 deficit (2022: £6,684,272
deficit) in Restricted General Funds (after accounting for defined benefit pension scheme deficit of £4,375,000
(2022: £8,489,000), and £23,158,249 (2022: £21,442,827 as restated) in Restricted Fixed Asset Funds.

The Trust’s assets were predominantly used for providing education to school pupils and for extended services.

The net book value of the Trust’s tangible fixed assets was £20,805,493 (2022: £20,518,319 as restated) at 31
August 2023 and the movement in this account is detailed in note 13 to the financial statements. The majority
of this is represented by the value of the assets transferred to the Trust from the schools joining the Trust since
its incorporation.

The Trust occupies land and buildings which are provided to it and owned by various land trustees (‘the Site
Trustees'). The Trust occupies this land and buildings under the terms of Church Land Supplemental Agreements
between the Oxford Diocesan Board of Education, the Site Trustees, Department for Education and the Trust,
which provide the Trust with the right to use the land and buildings of the schools for an indefinite period,
subject to a 2-year termination notice period, which amounts to a mere licence. The Trustees continue to
consider that prudence requires the exclusion from the balance sheet of land and buildings that are not
beneficially owned. An enhanced disclosure has been given in the note 13 of the financial statements.
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The Trust also has 125-year leases from Oxfordshire County Council, Reading Borough Council and the Royal
Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead for the playing fields of the various schools, which were transferred to
the Trust on conversion.

Cash in hand at 31 August 2023 was £11,990,805 (2022: £8,647,218).

FINANCIAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Our financial objectives include ensuring that every school within the Trust and the Trust’s central administration
set and maintain viable budgets to ensure long-term financial stability of the Trust. Budget plans for the Trust’s
central activities are planned on a three-year rolling basis and are monitored and amended to ensure continuing
viability under changing circumstances.

Budget plans for schools within the Trust are monitored and amended in consultation with the Chief Financial
Officer to ensure viability over a three-year rolling timescale, taking into account changes in funding levels
arising from pupil number changes or other funding factors. Cash flow is monitored monthly at a Trust and
individual school level. An internal Financial Procedures Manual has been published and issued to the Trust’s
schools which requires compliance with procedures designed to manage and protect the Trust’s funds and
ensure that they are authorised at appropriate levels and used appropriately.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board of Trustees has a risk management process to identify and monitor those risks faced by the Trust. A
risk register is in place and reviewed regularly.

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed, especially in the operational
areas, such as in relation to teaching, health and safety, safeguarding and school trips, and in relation to the
control of finances and strategic development of the Trust. They have introduced systems, including
operational procedures and internal financial controls in order to minimise risk and have agreed a Risk
Management Strategy and Risk Management Plan, which incorporates a Risk Register. Where significant
financial risk still remains, the Trustees have ensured the Academy Trust has adequate insurance cover in place.
The Risk Management Plan is constantly reviewed in light of any new information and formally reviewed
annually.

The Trust is a member of the risk protection arrangement (RPA) which is provided by the Department of
Education (DfE) for academies and free schools. The RPA is a voluntary arrangement and is an alternative to
insurance through which the cost of risks that materialise will be covered by government funds.

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Trust are identified as being:

Education Standards

The continuing success and reputation of the Trust is predicated on continuing to improve outcomes for
children and young people, and to enable all our pupils to make progress in their learning.

To ensure that we achieve our aims, the Trustees ensure that they themselves have sufficient skills and
experience to hold the Trust to account; we ensure that the central school improvement function is well
resourced both by officers and an appropriate revenue budget and that its effectiveness is monitored both in
detail at committee level and at the full Board. We encourage Trustees to know and visit schools.

We ensure that pupil outcomes are at the heart of all decision making and we set the highest expectations. We
have robust systems, high quality staff and mechanisms for direct invention should this be needed. Trustees
monitor standards using a range of soft and more formal measures. The support, training and development of
current and future leaders is also a key activity, and Trustees work to plan for the succession of key posts where
possible.
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Finances

Trustees understand that the Trust’s effectiveness is ultimately limited by its funding. We are almost wholly
reliant on Government funding through the ESFA. Trustees recognise the importance of a flexible and dynamic
approach to budgeting to be able to respond to unexpected local events, changes to government policy or
practice, and to develop in the most effective way to make the greatest difference. We also recognise there is
no assurance that Government funding levels will continue on the same terms or at the same level. We mitigate
risk by working to build up small surpluses when possible, at both local and central budget levels, and to analyse
costs carefully at all times, to ensure value for money; taking advantage of the economies of scale possible in a
large and growing Trust, whilst empowering local management of delegated funds to encourage careful
husbandry in individual cases. Due diligence is completed on each school applying to join the Trust, to ensure
no school joins needing funds the Trust cannot provide, and strong financial controls, using an integrated finance
package, arein place to ensure existing schools are supported with proper budget monitoring. Trustees regularly
review central staffing levels as the Trust grows to ensure central finance staffing remains sufficient to support
schools effectively. Trustees also ensure insurance arrangements are in place.

There are a series of cantrols in place to minimise the risk of fraud or financial mismanagement at a transactional
level; each school is required to adhere to the processes outlined in the Financial Procedures Manual and the
central team actively check this is complied with when visiting school sites. This activity is reported regularly to
the Finance Committee. Regular training is provided to finance staff to keep them up-to-date and develop their
skills.

Health & Safety and Safeguarding Risks

Trustees continue to ensure the maintenance of high standards in the area of selection and monitoring of staff,
maintenance of single central records, the setting of policies and operation of procedures in the area of
safeguarding and child protection and take both legal and HR advice regularly as appropriate. Regular
safeguarding audits are carried out by officers.

The physical safety and suitability of sites is monitored annually and Trustees ensure the appropriate follow-up
actions are carried out should any causes for concern be identified. Capital funding decisions are made mindful
of the need to minimise risk in this area. Contingency and emergency plans are in place and regularly reviewed
for a number of eventualities.

RESERVES POLICY

The Trust’s budget plan has been developed to ensure that reserves are maintained within the reserve policy
guidelines agreed with the Finance Committee and Board. Reserves are maintained to provide an appropriate
level of working capital, to invest appropriately in infrastructure for the future and to provide a contingency
against unforeseen cost and liabilities that might arise. The level of reserves held will be reviewed annually by
the Board of Trustees to ensure that it is adequate but not excessive. It is assessed that in the medium-term
cash reserves should be developed to equate to one to three months of budgeted operating expenditure. At
the year-end cash funds were equal to 2.75 months (2022: 2.2 months) of budgeted operating expenditure.

The Trust also proposes to look at setting aside reserves to enable it to support schools which have unexpected
and exceptional needs. This will be considered as part an on-going budget review process.

INVESTMENTS POLICY

The Trust has no investments other than balances held in current accounts at Lloyds bank for the Trust itself and
its schools. We do not anticipate having sufficient surplus funds for investment other than balances in the
current account. Trustees will continue to monitor the situation closely and will develop a formal investment
policy if and when necessary. At that time full consideration will be given to the extent to which social and
ethical considerations will influence investment decisions.

16



Oxford Diocesan Schools Tfust

FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES

The Trust does not currently have any central fundraising activities. It does not use the services of professional
fundraisers. The practice in place is that schools will individually develop fundraising activities, typically with the
assistance of their parent bodies through a formal Parent Teacher Association (PTA). There have been no
complaints over fundraising in the period 2022/23.

Plans for future periods

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

We intend to continue to grow the size of the Trust, but at a carefully managed rate so we can ensure all our
schools flourish. We envisage taking on one or two schools during the next accounting period, should there be
a need.

We are intending to increase our support for governance by recruiting additional professionals to lead that area
of the Trust’'s work. We remain committed to empowering our LGBs who know their schools well, and are
seeking to improve our training, communication and strategic thinking to ensure our support for governance
enables them to fulfil their role. We continue to want to develop our staff and are intending to run NPQ courses
once again in the future.

In a challenging financial climate we are committed to ensuring the sustainability of our very small schools where
possible and will consider very close working across neighbouring schools to facilitate this.

We continue to strive for the highest standards of teaching and learning in our schools and we seek to develop
our capacity to support teachers, for example with trust-wide initiatives to improve areas of learning, and by
developing a strategy to ensure pupils with SEND, many of whom are facing long waits for places in special
schools, receive appropriate support in our schoaols in the mean time.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Each of the persons who are Trustees at the time when this Trustees' Report is approved has confirmed that:

e 5o far as each Trustee is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Trust's auditor is
unaware, and

e that each Trustee has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Trust's auditor is aware of that
information.

AUDITOR

Haysmacintyre LLP continue to be appointed as auditor to the charitable Trust in accordance with section 487(2)
of the Companies Act 2006.

This report, incorporating the Strategic Report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the company
directors, on 13 December 2023 and signed on the board’s behalf by:

/Zﬂh\.n_.._j

Mrs K M Winrow
Chair of the Board of Trustees
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Governance Statement

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Charitable Trust has adopted a scheme of governance
approved by the Secretary of State for Education. The scheme of governance specifies, amongst other things,
the criteria for appointing Local Governing Body members and that the curriculum should comply with the
substance of the national curriculum.

SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

As the Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that the Trust has an effective and
appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between the Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting
to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

GOVERNANCE

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the
Trustees' Responsibilities Statement. The Board of Trustees has formally met five times during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustees Meetings Attended Out of a Possible
Sir C Booth 5 5
The Revd Canon S Booys 2 2
Dr P Chadwick 5 5
The Revd Canon B D Clover 5 5
Mrs J A Dellar 5 5
Ms J Fageant 5 5
Mr M Humphriss 3 5
Mr G Joyner 4 5
Mrs J Moriarty 5 5
Mr P Sanderson 4 5
Mr C Wheaton 4 5
Mrs K M Winrow 5 5
The Revd Canon T Wright 4 5

The Trust also has an Executive Committee composed of the Chair and Vice Chair of Trustees, the Chair of the
Finance Committee and the Chief Executive Officer, which can be convened to address particular issues. The
Chair of Trustees attends the monthly meetings of the Senior Leadership Team of the Trust and there is an
interim CEQ report between Trustee Board meetings. The aforementioned, together with the five meetings
during the year, enable the Board to discharge their responsibilities and ensure robust governance and effective
management arrangements are in place throughout the year.

Conflicts of Interest

ODST maintain an up-to-date and complete register of pecuniary interests and declaration of interests is a standard
agenda item at every committee and Trustee Board meeting.
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The Finance Committee is a committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to review the Trust’s
financial position closely and to provide delegated strategic financial direction.

The role of the Finance Committee includes preparing and approving annual budgets, monitoring financial
performance against the budget, reviewing delegated authorities, ensuring all transactions are conducted in
accordance with good practice as directed by the Charity Commission and the ESFA, to ensure best value is
achieved in all financial transactions and to receive and (where relevant) respond to annual audit reports on the
Trust and its use of public funds.

Attendance at Finance Committee meetings in the year was as follows:

Members Meetings Attended Out of a Possible
Sir C Booth 5 5
Mrs ] A Dellar 4 5
Mrs C Jones 5 5
Mr C Wheaton 4 5
Mrs K M Winrow 5 5

The role of the Audit Committee includes overview of actions taken to mitigate the Trust's major risks and to
review the Trust’s system of internal control.

The Audit Committee is a committee of the Board of Trustees. Its purpose is to maintain an oversight of the
Trust’s governance, risk management, internal control and value for money framework. [t reports its findings
annually to the Board of Trustees and the Accounting Officer as a critical elements of the Trust’s annual reporting
requirements.

Attendance at Audit Committee meetings in the year was as follows:

Members Meetings Attended Out of a Possible
Ms S Appleby 1 2
Sir C Booth 2 3
Mrs J A Dellar 2 3
Mrs A Jestico 3 3
Mrs E Selsey 1 1
Mrs K M Winrow 3 3

Review of Value for Money

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money during
each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including
the use of benchmarking data where available.

The Accounting Officer for the Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year in many ways
including:
e Embedding a culture in schools that recognises the funding constraints and supports all those involved
in decision-making to ensure children remain at the heart of all financial decisions
e Improved internal processes and procedures designed to ensure careful budgeting and targeted
spending remain at the heart of all decision-making
o Sharing of best practices within the schools in the Trust to ensure that the current procedures, processes
and systems are used to maximum efficiency.

19



Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

e Use of benchmarking data within the Trust, and that available on DfE website, to compare spend in key
areas and identify efficiencies wherever possible.

s Ensuring that the capital funding provided by the School Condition Allowance (SCA) has been used
effectively, proactively replacing items such as boilers at the end of their life, and ensuring tendered
contracts represent fair value for money, including the planning of works to minimise disruption to
schools and reduce the need for multiple site visits.

THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively
and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in the Trust for the year 1 September 2022
to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of Trustees is
of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant
risks, that has been in place for the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of
the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

THE RISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The Trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and
administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In
particular, it includes:
e comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees
e regular reviews by the Finance Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the
forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes
e setting targets to measure financial and other performance
e clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
e delegation of authority and segregation of duties
e identification and management of risks

In addition, the trust is in receipt of School Condition Allowance (SCA) and has a committee dedicated to
scrutinising the allocation of funds across the Trust.

The Board of Trustees considered the need for a specific internal audit function and undertook a review of the
options available. The decision was taken to carry out this function via the central finance team. This rolling
programme has been in place for a number of years now and is monitored and reviewed by the Audit Committee.
As per the option available in the guidance contained in the Academy Trust Handbook the internal scrutiny
function is carried out by a peer review process.

The external auditors undertook a range of checks during their statutory audit work, including site visits to a
sample of schools, to look at the operation of controls in individual schools. No major control issues were
identified. However, the work did identify improvements which could be made to the control system, and these
are being implemented by the Finance Committee and management.
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REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system
of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

e the regular monitoring reports including monthly management accounts

e the work of the Audit Committee and Finance Committee

e the work of the external auditors

e the work of other outside agencies

¢ the financial management and governance self-assessment process

o the work of the finance and operations team within the Trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

* The impact of the capital spending from the SCA on the maintenance and development of our schools'
buildings, balancing the need for core repairs such as replacing roofs, boilers etc, with the ability to fund
some projects designed to enhance the learning environment.

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Audit Committee and a plan to ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 13 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Mrs K M Winrow Mrs J A Dellar
Chair of the Board of Trustees Chief Executive Officer and Accounting Officer
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Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust, | have considered my responsibility to notify the
academy trust board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and
management, under the funding agreement between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for
Education. As part of my consideration, | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust
Handbook 2022, including responsibilities for estates safety and management.

| confirm that the Board of Trustees and | are able to identify any material, irregular or improper use of funds by
the Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust's funding
agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022.

| confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date other than the technical breach of paragraph 5.41 and 5.42 of the Academy Trust Handbook through not
obtaining prior approval from the ESFA in respect of charges to the Trust by ODBE as detailed in notes to the
financial statements — Note 26 Related party transactions. The ESFA are aware and have confirmed that they
will take no further action in respect of the breach. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement,
these will be notified to the board of trustees and ESFA.

Mrs J A Dellar
Chief Executive Officer and Accounting Officer

Date: 13 December 2023
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Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities

The Trustees (who are also Directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report (including the Strategic Report) and the financial statements
in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency,
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company
law the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of
resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the
Trustees are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2022 to 2023;

e state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

 make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the charitable company will continue in business.

e ensure that the property estate is safe, well maintained and complies with relevant regulations, as well
as being fit for educational purposes

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for
the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the Board of Trustees on 13 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:
/—\
i

Mrs K M Winrow
Chair of the Board of Trustees
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust for the year ended 31 August 2023
which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and the
related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023
issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

s give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company’s affairs as at 31 August 2023 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the charitable company in
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the charitable company's ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

OTHER INFORMATION

The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Trustees’ Annual Report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a
material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust
(continued)

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e the information given in the Trustees’ Annual Report (which includes the strategic report and the
directors’ report prepared for the purposes of company law) for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the strategic report and the directors’ report included within the Trustees’ Annual Report have been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees’ Annual Report (which
incorporates the strategic report and the directors’ report).

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

e the charitable company has not kept adequate accounting records, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

e the charitable company’s financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or

e certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As explained more fully in the Trustees' responsibilities statement, the Trustees (who are also directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view and for such internal control as the trustees
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the charitable company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below:
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Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust
(continued)

Based on our understanding of the charitable company and the environment in which it operates, we identified
that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to charity law, and we considered
the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also
considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial statements
such as the Companies Act 2006, the Charities Act 2011, the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 and
the academy trust’s compliance with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook and Master Funding
Agreement in place. '

We evaluated management’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial
statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to
the posting of inappropriate journal entries and management bias in accounting estimates and judgements.
Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

® |nspecting correspondence with regulators, including the Education and Skills Funding Agency and tax
authorities; 5

e Discussions with management including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulation and fraud;

e Evaluating management’s controls designed to prevent and detect irregularities;

* |dentifying and testing journals, in particular journal entries posted that significantly impact on the
result for the year or relate to areas subject to significant judgements or estimates and those areas
considered to be higher risk; and

e Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in their critical accounting estimates.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including
those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This
risk increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions
reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance.
The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves
intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council’s website at: www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report is made solely to the charitable company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
charitable company’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditor’s Report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the charitable company and the charitable company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for
this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

A £ 51

Kathryn Burton (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Haysmacintyre LLP, Statutory Auditor
10 Queen Street Place

London

EC4R 1AG

Date: 18/12/2023
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Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to Oxford
Diocesan Schools Trust and the Education & Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 4 September 2019 and further to the requirements
of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023,
we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by the Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust during the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023
have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to the Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust
and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Oxford Diocesan Schools
Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust’s accounting officer and the reporting accountant
The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of the Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 28 September 2018, and the Academy Trust
Handbook extant from 1 September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which
govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters
that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive
opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of
the Trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion included:

e areview of internal control palicies and procedures implemented by the Academy and an evaluation
of their design and effectiveness to understand how the Academy has complied with the framework
of authorities;
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Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to Oxford
Diocesan Schools Trust and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (continued)

e areview of the minutes of meetings of the Trustees, relevant sub-committees and Local Governing
Bodies, management accounts and making enquiries with management relevant to our consideration
of regularity;

s reviewing the procedures for identifying and declaring related parties and other business interests;

e review of correspondence between the ESFA and the Academy in respect of reporting related party
transactions;

e scrutinising journals, and other adjustments posted during the year for evidence of unusual entries
and making enquiries into any such items where relevant;

» enquiries of management of new leases in the period to ensure that they are entered into in line with
the financial handboak policies; and

e detailed testing of the income and expenditure of the Academy based on our assessment of the risk
of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance. This work was integrated with our audit of
the financial statements where appropriate and included analytical review and substantive sample
testing of transactions.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, except for the matter listed below, nothing has come to our attention which suggests
thatin all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2022
to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do
not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Matter 1: The Academy trust was found to be in breach of paragraph 5.41 and 5.42 of the Academy Trust
Handbook through not obtaining prior approval from the ESFA in respect of fees charged to the trust by the
Oxford Diocesan Board of Education. These fees relate to the provision of services relating to the religious
characteristics of the trust and as part of their role acting as the body responsible for maintaining schoaol
buildings which are entirely funded by the School Condition Allocation (SCA). The SCA funds were made
available to ODBE on behalf of ODST from the ESFA from 1 September 2022 to 1 April 2023, thereafter these
funds have been disbursed directly to ODST. The ESFA are aware and have confirmed that they will take no
further action in respect of the breaches in this regard.

H%j_smuacgmla e LR

Reporting Accountant
Haysmacintyre LLP
10 Queen Street Place
London

EC4R 1AG

Date: 18/12/2023
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Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

Statement of Financial Activities
For the year ended 31 August 2023
(including Income and Expenditure Account)

Note
Income and endowments from:

Denations and capital grants 2
Transfer from local authorily on conversion
Charilable activities:
Funding for the academy trust's
educational operations
Other trading activities
Invesiments

o Do

Total
Expenditure on:

Transfer from local authorily on conversion 27
Transfer from existing academy trust
Raising Funds ]
Charitable activities:
Granls 6,7
Academy trust educational operations 6,8

Total

Net income / {expenditure)
Transfers between funds 16

Other Ised galns / (I )

Actuarial gains / (losses) on defined benefit pension

schemes 25
Net movement in funds

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds caried forward at 31 August 2022

previously reported

Correction of prior period error - see Note 1(b)

Total funds brought forward - as restated 16
Net movement in funds

Total funds carried forward at 31 August 2023 16

The notes on pages 32 to 50 form part of these accounts.

Restricted Restricted As restated

Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £

498,864 £6,658 4,609,034 5,174,556 3,669,364

- - - - 7.587
1,240,775 50,356,818 - 51,597,593 45,172,043
1,966,781 - - 1,966,781 1,710,632
1.108 - - 1,109 1.075
3,707 529 50,423,477 4,609,034 58,740,040 50,560,701
(83,507) 303,000 (B3,626) 135,867 -

. - - - 1,130,411

665,089 - - 665,099 583,511

- - 2,311.005 2,311,005 2,255,855
2,865,025 51,399,201 666,133 54,930,359 53,268,044
3,446 617 51,702,201 2,893,512 58,042,330 57,237,821
260,912 {1,278,724) 1,715,522 697,710 (6,677,120)

- 5,680,000 - 5,680,000 29,953,000

260,912 4,401,276 1,715,622 6,377,710 23,275,880
4,766,640 (6,684,272} 22,857 676 20,240,044 {3,750,685)
- - (1.414,849) (1,414,849) -
4,766,640 (6,684,272) 21,442,827 19,525,185 {3,750,685)
260,912 4,401,276 1,715,522 6,377,710 23,275,880
5,027,552 (2,282,996) 23,158,349 25,902,905 19,525,185
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Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

Balance Sheet
As at 31 August 2023

Notes
Fixed assets
Tangible assels 13
Current assets
Debtors 14
Cash al bank and in hand 22
Liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due within cne year 15
Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Net assets excluding i t liability
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 25
Total net assets
Funds of the academy trust:
Restricted funds
Fixed asset fund 16
Reslricted Income Fund 16
Pension reserve 16
Total restricted funds
Unrestricted income funds 16
Total funds

2023

2,832,339

11,990,805

14,823,145

(5,350,733)

23,158,348
2,092,004

(4,375,000)

As restated

2023 2022 2022
£ £ £
20,805,493 20,518,319

3,977,971

8,647,219

12,625,180

(5,129,314}

9,472,412 7,495,876
30,277,905 28,014,195
30,277,905 28,014,195
(4,375,000} (8,489,000)
25,902,905 18,525,185

21,442,827
1,804,728
(8,489,000)
20,876,353 14,758,555
5,027,552 4,766,640

The financial statements on pages 29 to 50 were approved by the trustees, and authorised for issue on 13 December 2023 and are signed on their behalf by:

Wi >

Mrs K M Winrow
Chair of the Board of Directors/Truslees

Company registration no: 08143249 (England & Wales)



Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 August 2023

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash used in operating acliviies

Cash flows from investing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Seg ber 2022

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2023

20

21

2023 2022

£ £

(330,141) (2,049 489)
3,673,727 2,187,353
3,343,586 137,864
8,647,219 8,509,355
11,990,805 8,647,219

31



Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2023

(b)

(c)

(d)

te)

Statement of Accounting Policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopled (which have been applied consistently, except where noled), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out
below.

Basis of Preparation

The financial stalements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS102), the Accounling and Reporting by Charilies: Statement of Recommended Praclice applicable to
charilies preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS102)), the
Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Prior year adjustment

The academy lrust was provided with valuation reports as at 31 August 2021 by the DIE which indicaled that the carrying value of the land and buildings of South Moreton Primary
School were impaired. As this information was available, but not taken into account prior to the finalisalion of the financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2022,
management and the trustees consider it appropriate to make a prior period adjustment in these financial statements to recognise an impairment charge to reduce the carrying value
of the land and buildings to those set cut in the valuation reports.

The impact of this prior year adjustment has been as follows:

- Accumulated depreciation and impairment brought forward has increased by £647 966 in respect of long leasehold land and £766,883 in respect of long leasehold buildings. This
is matched by a corresponding reduction in the restricted fixed asset fund.

- The recognition of an impairment charge (included in expenditure on Charilable activities relating to the academy trust's educational operations) of £1,414,849 in the comparative
Statement of Financial Activities. The nelimpact has been lo increase net expenditure and reduce net movement in restricted fixed asset and total funds reported in the previous
year by £1,414,849,

Going Concern

The llguslees assess whether the use of going concern is appropniate i.e. whether there are any malerial uncertainties related to events or condilions thal may cast significant doubt on
the ability of the academy trust to continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue
of the financial statements and have concluded that the academy trust has adequalte resources to continue in operational existence for the for bie future and there are no
material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to continue as a going concem, thus they continue to adopt the going concemn basis of accounting in preparing the financial
statements,

Income
Allincome is recognised when the academy trust has entitliement to the funds, the receiptis p and the can be ed reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Stalement of Financial Aclivities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown
in the relevant funds on the balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions, there is not unconditional entittement to the income
and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. \Where enfitiement occurs before income is received, the
income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it Is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from
income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricled fixed
asset fund. Capital grants are recognised when there is entilement and are not deferred over the life of the assel on which they are expended,

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other Income
Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent academy lrust is provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services o
Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected costs of sale, If it is praclical to assess |he fair value at receipt, itis
recognised in stock and ‘Income from other trading activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against 'Income from other trading activities' and the proceeds are
recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities'. Where it is impractical lo fair value the tems due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial
statements until they are sold. This income is recognised within 'Income from other trading activities'.

Transfer on conversion .

Where assels are received by the trust on conversion to an academy, the transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheel al the point when the
risks and rewards of ownership pass to the trust, An equal amount of income is recognised as transfer on conversion within donations and capital grant income lo the net assels
received.

Transfer of existing academies into the trust

Where assels and liabilities are received on the transfer of an existing academy into the acad trust, the transf net assets are measured al fair value and recognised In the
balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the academy trust. An equal amount of income is recognised for the transfer of an existing academy into
the academy trust within donations and capital arant income to the net assets acouired.

Expend

E:ger?dim‘rms recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, itis probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required
in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expendilure is classified by aclivity. The costs of each activity are made up of the lotal of direct costs and
shared costs, Including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs atiributable to a single activity are allocaled directly to that aclivity. Shared costs which
contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not aliributable to a single aclivity are apportioned between hose activilies on a basis consistent with the use of
resources. Central staff costs are allocaled on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.
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Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 August 2023

1 Stat t of A ting Policies (continued)

Expenditure on Raising Funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charilable purposes and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charilable trading.

Charitable Activities
These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educalional operations, including support costs and costs relaling to the governance of the academy trust apporiioned to charitable
activities, Govemance cosis are those atiribulable to the academy trust's compliance with constilutional and statutory requirements, including audit, strategic management and

3 ings and reimb expenses.

All resources expenses are inclusive of imecoverable VAT,

(f) Tangible Fixed Assets
Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assels and are carrled at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost
and depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are

credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the Bal Sheet, Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the
restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where langible fixed assets have been acquired wilh unrestricled funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to
the unrestricted fund.

The academy trust occupias Iand and buildings which are provided (o it and owned by varlous land trustees ('the Site Trustees'). The academy lrust occupies this land and buildings
under the terms of S beh 1 the Oxford Diccesan Board of Education, the Sile Trustees and the academy trust, which provide the academy trust with the
right to use the land and buildings 01 the Academies for an indefinite period, subject to a 2 year termination nolice period, which amounts to a mere licence. Having considered the
fact that the academy trust occupies the land and such buildings as may be or may come to be erecled on it by a mere licence, which transfers to the academy trust no rights or
conltrol over the sites save that of occupying it at the will of the Site Trustees under the lerms of the relevant site trust, the Direclors have concluded that the value of the land and
buildings occupied by the academy trust will not be recognised on the balance sheet of the academy trust.

As it is the academy trust's policy that land and buildings occupied under Supplemental Agreements do not constitute fixed assets, capilal expenditure incurred by the academy trust
on new buildings, improvements and significant additions are not capitalised. Any such expenditure is recognised charitable expenditure as granis. Where this expendilure has been
funded by specific grants, it is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset funds in the Stalement of Financial Activities.

The academy trust also occupies land being school playing fields, under 125 year leasas with Oxfordshire County Council, Reding Borough Council and Royal Borough of Windsor
and Maidenhead. As these are considered to have negligible value, no value is assigned to school playing fields where assigned to the academy trust.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life,

as follows:

Fixtures and fittings 5 years

IT infra-structure and systems 5 years

Computer equipment 3 years

Long leasehold buildings 50 years

Long leasehold improvements 20 years

Long leasehold land over the course of the lease term

A review for impairment of a fixed assel is camied oul if evenls or changes in circumsiances indicate that the carrying value of any fixed assel may not be recoverable. Shortfalls
between the carrying value of fixed assels and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities.

(g) Liabllities
Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheel date as a resull of a past evenl, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in
settlement, and the amount of the setlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anlicipates it will pay to setlls the debt or the
amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods of services it must provide.



Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

1 Stat tof A ting Policies (continued)

{h) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past evenlt which il is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits
and the obligalion can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimale of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the
present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific lo the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest
payable and similar charges.

(i) Leased Assets
Renlals under operaling leases are charged on a siraight line basis over the lease term.

{i) Financial Instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as
follows:

Financial assels — trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 14. Prepaymenis are nol financial
instruments.

Cash al bank —is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities — rade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured al amortised cost as detailed in note 15. Taxation and social security
are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to ba a financial liability, as the cash selllement has already taken place and there is
an oblioation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

(k) Taxation
The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK
corporalion lax purposes,

Accordingly, the femy trustis [ y pt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation
Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, lo the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

() Pensions
Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Schema ('TPS') and the Local Government Pension Schemes ('LGPS'). These are
defined benefit schemes and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculaled so as to spread the cost of pensions over employses’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way thal the
pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial
valuations using a prospective unit credit methed, TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is
treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting ourooses and the contributions recoanised in the period 1o which thev relate.

The LGPS are funded multi-employer schemes and the assets are held separately trom those of the academy trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assels
are measured at fair value and liabllilies are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rale of return on
a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date.
The amounts charged to the net incomel(expenditure) are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introduclions, benefit changes, selt| its and curtail They are
included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest
cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assels, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assels al the beginning of the period by the
rate used lo discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assels is recognised in other
recoanised qains and |osses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

{m) Fund Accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the academy trusl at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are lo be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by funders where the assel acquired or created is held for a specific purpose,

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funderidonor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

(n) Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Eslimates and judgements are conlinually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumslances.
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1 Stat t of A ting Policies {continued)

Chritical accounting estimates and assumptions
The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual

results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the camying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Crilical areas of judgement

Local ment pension scheme acluarial assumplions

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit fiability depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of
assumplions, The assumplions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 25,
will impact the carrying amount of the pensions liability. Furihermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2023, Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full acluarial
valuation would imoact on the carrving amount of the pension liabilitv,

E: fai i he academy trust on conversion from local authorilies

As detailed in Note 1(c), the academy trust is required to measure assels and liabililies received by the academy trust on conversion at fair value as income and as assels and
liabilities in the balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the trust. These assets include 125 year leases wilh the local authorities for school| playing
fields and for land and buildings occupied by schools. The gavemment has a regular programme of valuations undertaken on the assets occupied by academy trusls undertaken by a
firm of chartered surveyors for the purposes of its own accounts. When these values are made available the academy trust these are utilised as they are considered a reliable
estimate of fair value for financial reporting purposes. Where the resulls of these valuations are not available management eslimates fair value based on the values attributed to
similar assels adjusted for known local factors and the geographical size of the site upon which the school is situated. The trustees have reviewed the methodology applied in such

ci as and confirm their agr that this is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

mgln’nant of tangible fixed assels

As set out in Note 1(f) the fixed assels of the y trust are reviewed where manag b aware of events or changes in circumstances that indicate that the carrying
value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Where such Indicators are identified management undertakes an impairmenl review to estimate Ihe recoverable amount of the
assel and lo compare this to the carrying value in the financial its. Shortfalls the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as
impairments losses in the Stalement of Financial Activities. The y trust rece luations from the Dey of Education in respect of the land and buildings occupied by
its schools prepared by a firm of chartered surveyars for the public sector reporting purposes, While the academy trust has not adopted a policy of re ion in respact of these
assels, [t is the judgement of management that where the fair value estimated in these valuations is significantly less than the camying value in the academy trust's own financial
statements, is considered to be an indication of impairment and the most relevant of ther ble amount. Therefore, this remains an area where fulure valuations may

indicate further impairment charges to be recognised in the financial statements.

2 Donations and capital grants

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £
Donations 498,864 66,658 374,393 939,915 782,085
Capital Grants - - 4,234 641 4,234,641 2,887,279
498,864 56,658 4,609,034 5,174,556 3,669,364

2021/22 total 288.250 268,511 3,112,563 3,669,364
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3 Funding for the Academy Trust's ed ional operations
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £
DIE | ESFA grants
General Annual Grant {GAG) = 39,681,037 - 39,691,037 36,506,978
Other DIE / ESFA granls
UIFSM - 1,148,738 - 1,148,738 1,039,749
Pupil premium - 2,262,366 - 2,262,366 1,907,088
Start Up/Schoal improvement grants = 185,000 - 185,000 70,405
Others - 2,759,092 - 2,759,092 810,584
- 46,046,234 - 46,046,234 40,334 804
Other Government grants
Local authaority grants - 3,869,947 - 3,869,947 2,990,634
- 3,869,947 - 3,869,947 2,990,634
Calering income 639,790 - - 639,790 552,380
Other income from educational operations 600,985 69,137 - 670,122 653,239
1,240,775 69,137 - 1,309,912 1,245619
Exceptional government funding
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme grant - - - - 407
Ceronavirus exceplional support - - - - 23,604
Covid recovery premiumn / catch up funding - 217,799 - 217,799 195,123
DIE IT granis - - - - 50,752
Mational Tutoring Grants - 152,237 - 152,237 253,037
Other - 1,465 - 1,465 78,063
- 371,501 - 371,501 600,986
1,240,775 50,356,818 - 51,597,593 45,172,043
2021/22 total 1,245619 43,926,424 - 45,172,043

The academy trust was eligible to claim addilional funding from government support schemes in response to the coronavirus outbreak. The funding received is shown above under
“exceptional government funding".

The academy trust recelved £217,799 (2022: £195,123) recovery premium (previously called catch up funding) to support children to catch up on missed learning caused by lhe
impact of coronavirus, The academy Irust has also received funding under the National Tutoring Programme of £152,237 (2022; £253,037) to provide additional luition for pupils. The
other exceptional funding received in the prior year for coronavirus exceptional support of £23,604 covered free school meals, cleaning and premises cosls, £50,752 were received in
the form of IT grants from the DIE to support digital education duning covid.

In the prier year the academy furloughed some of its extended services staff under the government’s CJRS. The funding received of £407 related lo staff costs in respect of 2 staff
which are included within note 9 below as appropriate.

4 Other trading activities

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total Tolal
Funds Funds Funds 2023 2022
£ £ £ E £
Hire of facililies 123,169 - - 123,169 106,249
Extended services 1,299,351 - - 1,299,351 1,083,876
Adult catering 10,508 - - 10,508 8,570
Other income 533,754 - - 533,754 511,837
1,966,781 - - 1,966,781 1,710,632
2021/22 total 1.?10.5& - - 1,710,632
5 Investment Income
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total Tatal
Funds Funds Funds 2023 2022
£ F X £ £ £
Short term deposits 1,109 - - 1,108 1,075
108 : : 7108 1075
2021/22 total 1,075 - = 1,075
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6

Expenditure

Current year
Expenditure on raising funds
Grants

y's
Direct costs
Allocated support cosis

Previous year
Expendilure on raising funds
Grants
Academy’s educational operations
Direct cosls
Allocated support costs

Net income/(expenditure) for the period includes:;

Operating lease rentals
Depreciation
Impairment charge
Fees payable to auditor for:
Audit
Other services

Included within expendilure are the following transactions.

Gifts made by the academy trust
Debt write offs

Analysis of grants

Improvements to property owned by church land rustees occupied

by the academy trust

2021/22 total

Charitable Activities

Direct costs - educational operations

S rt costs - p

Analysis of support costs

Support staff costs
Depreciation

Impairment

Technology costs
Premises costs

Legal costs - conversion
Legal costs - others
Other support costs
Governance costs

Staff Non Pay Expenditure Total
Costs Premises Other 2023
£ £ E £
609,948 55,151 665,099
- 2,311,005 - 2,311,005
34,605,283 - 3,116,832 37,722,115
7,983 182 3,613,958 5,611,104 17,208,244
43,198,414 5,924,563 8,783,085 57,906,463
As restated
Staff Non Pay Expenditure Total
Costs Premises Other 2022
£ £ £ £
536,650 - 46,861 583,511
- 2,255,855 - 2,255,855
30,645,456 - 2,233,104 32,878,560
10,177,086 4,719,847 5,492,561 20,389,484
41,359,192 6,975,702 7,772,516 56,107,410
As restated
2023 2022
£ £
35744 11,73
686,133 604,587
- 1,414,849
43,025 37,000
13,625 13,300
Total £ Individual items above £5,000
Amount £ Reason
348 - nfa
133 - nfa
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total Total
Funds Funds Funds 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £
- - 2,311,005 2,311,005 2,255,855
= = Z3TT,005 ZITT,005 7755855
- - 255855 2255855
As restated
Total Total
2023 2022
£ £
37, 722115 32,878,560
17,208,244 20,389 484
54,930,359 53,268,044
As Restated
Educational Total Total
operations 2023 2022
£ £ £
7,983,182 7,983,182 10,177,086
666,133 666,133 604,587
1,414,849
658,296 658,296 588,196
3,254,082 3,254,082 2,955,888
18,382 18,382 19,265
8,058 8,058 8,400
4,529,424 4,629,424 4,540,911
90,686 90,686 80,302
17,208,244 17,208,244 20,389,484
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9 Staff

a. Staff costs 2023 2022
Staff costs during the period were: £ £
Wages and salaries 31,630,732 27,297,974
Social securily costs 2,719,693 2,375,138
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 7,678,456 10,549 487
Apprenticeship Levy 144,268 121,808
42,173,190 40,344,400
Supply staff costs 949,554 834,337
Staff rastructuring costs 75,670 180,448
43,198,414 41,359,192

Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Redundancy and other termination payments 36,371 162,795
Severance payments 39,299 17,650
75,670 180,445

b. Non statutory/non contractual staff severance payments
Included in staff restruciuring costs are non-statutory/non-coniraciual severance payments totalling £39,299 (2022: £17,650). Individually, the payments were £11,547, £10,000,
£9,018 and £8,734.

c. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as foliows:

£110,001 - £120,000 o
£120,001 - £130,000

2023 2022

No. No.

Teachers 542 503
Management, Administration & Support staff 926 882
1,468 1,385

d. Higher paid staff
The number of employees (including headteachers and senior staff) whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension cosls)

exceeded £60,000 was: 2023 2022
No. No.

£60,001 - £70,000 12 18
£70,001 - £80,000 18 4]
£80,001 - £90,000 1 2
£80,001 - £100,000 1 -
1

-

e. Key management personnel
The key management personnel of the academy trust includes the truslees and the five individuals (2022: four) that comprise the senior mar 1t team as listed on page 1. The
total amount of employee benefits {(including employer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management persennel for their services

lo the academy trust was £448 583 (2022: £422 276).
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10  Central Services

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year;
Educalional services and school improvemenits;
Human resources support;
Govemnance support;
Premises management support,
Accountancy and financial management support

The trust charges for these services on the following basis:
5% of the Academy's GAG for the period to 31 August 2023

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows: 2023 2022
£ £
John Henry Newman CE England Academy, Littlemore 72,762 72910
Grove CE Primary School 47,198 42,320
The Hendreds CE Primary School 32,532 31,584
St Christopher's C of E Primary School, Cowley 77,697 83,719
Wheatley C of E Primary School 57,790 53,873
5t Peter's C of E Middle School, Old Windsor 77,404 67,521
Burchetts Green C of E Infants School 16,379 20,388
St Luke's C of E Primary School, Maidenhead 71,033 68,941
The Blake C of E Primary School, Witney 77,623 76,703
St Christopher's C of E Primary School, Langford 25,841 28624
St Peter's C of E Primary School, Alvescot 25,591 23,378
North Leigh C of E Primary School 41,973 39,233
Bamplon C of E Primary School 39,221 38,805
The Balt C of E Primary School, Witney 69,093 66,253
Burford Primary School 29,822 26,738
Brize Norton Primary School 31,738 29,779
Holyport C of E Primary School 50,334 52,729
St Mary's C of E Infants School, Witney 21,151 21,481
Deddington C of E Primary School 41,453 42,008
Dr South's C of E Primary School, Islip 23,969 22,736
Datchet St Mary's C of E Primary Academy 48,561 51,142
Kidmore End C of E Primary School 34,094 38,456
Leafield C of E Primary School 25,284 24,828
South Moreton Primary School 31,768 29,239
Dr Radcliffe's C of E Primary School, Steeple Aston 41,286 39,710
Tackley C of E Primary School 33,806 20,930
Wroxton C of E Primary School 25,581 22,023
MNarih Hinksey C of E Primary School 44,143 43,681
St Marys C of E Primary School, Banbury 48,897 46,355
Northbourne C of E Primary School 65,910 64,163
St Nicholas C of E Primary School, Wallingford 36,993 37,348
Fir Tree Junior School, Wallingford 47,435 45,235
Wootton-by-Woedstock C of E Primary School 5,681 13,733
Benson CE Primary School 51,820 48,279
Blewbury CE Primary School 30,672 28,936
Christopher Rawlins CE Primary School 51,393 50,160
Tyndale Community School 79,258 77,235
St Frideswide CE Primary School 67,044 65,120
St John's C of E Primary, Reading 84,320 55,381
New Town Primary School, Reading 78,683 41,975
New Christ Church C of E Primary School, Reading 45179 28,661
St Laurence C of E Primary School, Warborough 22,945 -
All Saints C of E Junior School, Maidenhead 36,721 -
1,972,367 1.782,327
11 Related Party Tr ions - Trustees' R fon & Exg

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received olher benefils from an employment with the academy trust. The CEO only receives remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal under their contract of employment, and not in respect of their role as trustee. Other trustees did nol receive any payments,
other than expenses, from the academy trust in respect of their role as trustees, The value of trustees’ remuneration and other benefils was as follows:

Mrs J A Dellar (CEQ and truslee) Remuneration: 2023: £120,000 - £125,000 (2022: £110,000 - £115,000)
Employer's pension contributions: 2023: £20,000 - £25,000 (2022: £20,000 - £25,000)

During the period ended 31 August 2023, £2,605 were reimbursed or paid directly to 7 trustees for travel expenses. In the previous year, £1,761 were reimbursed or paid directly to 5
trustees.

12 Trustees' and Officers’ Insurance

The academy Irust has opted into the Department for Education’s risk protection arrangement (RPA), an altemative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise.
This scheme protects trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurming whilst on academy trust business, and provides cover up to
£10,000,000. It is not possible to quanlify the trustees and officers indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme membership.
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13 Tangible Fixed Assets

Cost

Al 1 Seplember 2022

Transfer from existing academy trust
Additions

Disposals

At 31 August 2023

Depreclation and impairment
At 1 September 2022 (as previously stated)
Prior year adjusiment (see Note 1(b}}

Al 1 September 2022 (as 1)
Charged in year
Disposals

At 31 August 2023

Net book values
At 31 August 2023

At 31 August 2022 (as restated)

Long Long
Leasehold Leasehold Plant and Comp IT infra
Land Buildings Machinery Equipment and systems Total
£ £ £ £ £ E
10,814,356 11,752,180 1,051,860 1,387,937 103,888 25,110,231
- - - 16,891 & 16,881
502,555 192,959 229,215 11.687 936416
10,814,356 12,254,745 1,244 819 1,634,043 115575 26,083,538
366,749 921,611 857,602 992 665 38,438 3,177,063
647 966 765,883 - - - 1,414 849
1,014,715 1,688 494 857,602 992 665 38,438 4,591,912
81,442 278,434 84,983 207,584 13,690 666,133
1,096,157 1,966,928 942 585 1,200,249 52,126 5,258,045
5!718!199 121_2=87.E17 302,234 433,794 63,449 20,805,493
9,799,641 10,063,696 194,258 395,272 65,452 20,518,319
oI

The academy trust occupies land and buildings at a numher of sites which are provided to it and owned by various land Trustees ('the Site Trustees'). The academy trust occupies this

land and buildings under the lerms of Suppl

te hal

the Oxford Diocesan Board of Education, the Site Trustees and the academy trust, which provide the

academy trust with the right to use the fand and buudmgs of Ihe Academies for an indefinite period, subject to a 2 year termination notice period, which amounts to a mere licence.
Having considered the fact that the academy trust occupies the land and such buildings as may be or may come to be erected on it by a mere licence, which transfers to the academy
trust no rights or conlrol over the sites save that of occupying it at the will of the Site Trustees under the terms of the relevant sile trust, the Trustees have concluded that the value of
the land and buildings occupied by the academy trust will not be recognised on the balance sheet of the academy trust,

14  Debtors

Trade debtors

VAT recoverable

Other deblors

Prepayments and accrued income

15  Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other credilors

Accruals and deferred income

Deferred income

Deferred income at 1 Seplember
Released from previous years
Resources deferred in the year

Deferred income at 31 August

The majorily of the balance of the deferred income at 31 August 2023 relates lo funds r

grants which will be utilised in the year ended 31 August 2024,

1 in 2023 for Uni

2023 2022
£ £
425,884 53,368
1,135,709 847 768
20610 14,837
1,250,137 3,061,998
2832339 3,877,971
2023 2022
£ E
998,774 1,211,407
635,908 582,309
761,033 722922
2,954,018 2,612,676
5!350 733 5129314
2023 2022
£ £
1,308,480 1,054,866
(1,308,480} (1,054,866)
1,447,901 1,308,480
47801 1308480

| Infant Free School Meals and Special Education Needs Top Up

40
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16  Funds As restated

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September Income Expenditure Losses & 31 August
2022 Transfers 2023
£ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 914,690 39,691,037 (39,094,845) - 1,510,882
Pupil premium 271,957 2,262,366 {2,490,473) - 43,850
UIFSM - 1,148,728 (1,148,738) - -
Start Up Granls/School Improvement Grants 68,004 185,000 (228,804) - 24,200
Other DfE / ESFA grants 299,050 2,759,092 (2,709,253) - 348,889
Coronavirus government support funding 98,207 a7m,5m (469,708) - -
Local Authority grants 12,011 3,869,947 (3,783,472) - 98,486
Other restricted funds 140,809 135795 (210,908) - 65,696
Pension reserve (8,489.000) - 1,566,000 5,680,000 (4,375,000
(6,684,272) 50,423 477 (51.702,201) 5,680,000 (2,282 996)
Restricted fixed asset funds
Transfer on conversion and from existing trusts 18,744,145 - (649,242) - 18,094,903
DfE Group capital grants transferred on conversion 47,258 - 66,735 - 113,994
DfE Group capital grants 651,965 3,580,578 (2,506,939) 1725603
LA capital grants - 654,063 (607,683} 46,380
Other Capital donations 225284 374,393 (132,925) 466,753
Capilal expenditure treated as grants to Site Trustees - - {2,311,005) 2,311,005 -
Fixed assets purchased with capital arants 1,774,174 - - 936,542 2,710,716
21,442,827 4,609,034 (2,893.512) - 23,158,349
Total restricted funds 14,758,555 55,032,611 (54,595,713) 5,680,000 20,875,353
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds 4,766,640 3,707,529 (3,446,617) 5,027,552
Total unrestricted funds 4,766,640 3,707,528 (3,446.617) - 5,027,552
Total funds 19!525!195 58,740,040 (58,042,330) 5,680,000 25,902,905

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

General annual grant
This is used for educational purposes in line with the academy trust's objectives and its funding agreements. Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of Stale, the academy

frust was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2023,

Pupil premium
Pupil premium is funding to imp educalion ¢ for disadvantaged pupils.

UIFSM
Universal infant free school meals (UIFSM) provides funding for all government funded schools to offer free school meals to pupils in reception, year 1, and year 2.

Start Up Grants/School Improvement Grants
Start-up Grants is funding provided to cover the cosls of establishing additional schools that join the academy trust. School Improvement Granis fund the ongeing development of the

academy trust.

Other DIE/ESFA grants
This represents revenue grants and other income which are used to provide additional support in specific areas in the school as set out by the terms of the respective grants and

funders.

Coronavirus government support funding
This represents the additional funding received in the year from government support schemes in response to the coronavirus outbreak,

Local Authority grants
These were used to cover repairs and maintenance lo the building and to supply Special Needs support and Nursery places for 3-4 year olds.

Other restricted funds
This represents other resiricled funds received by schools across the trust for which specific purposes have been expressed by the donors or funders.

Pension reserve
This represents the negative reserve in respect of the liability on the LGPS defined benefit pension scheme.

Fixed asset fund
The fund includes the value of the langible fixed assets of the academy on conversion, and monies transferred from the GAG or other restricted funds specifically for expenditure on

langible fixed assels, and the annual charges for depreciation of these assels.

LA Capital Grants
This relates to $106 capital grants and associated caplital spand.

Other Capital donations
This relates o monies donated to the academy trust for the building of a music block at Wroxton CE Primary School and the new hub building at John Henry Newman

Transfers between funds

Transfars from either restricted general funds or unrestricted funds lo the restricled fixed asset funds are made where revenue reserves are required lo finance the purchase of
tangible fixed assets, Transfers from restricted fixed assels fund to either restricted general funds or unrestricted funds are made where capital income has been spent on repairs and
maintenance of existing fixed assets. Other transfers between funds represent the amounts conltributed to the expenditure incurred by schools for specific purposes.

4
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16

Funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the
preceding period is as follows:

Restricted general funds

General Annual Grant (GAG)

Pupil premium

UIFSM

Start Up Grants/School Improvement Grants
Other DIE / ESFA granls

Coronavirus government support funding
Local Authority grants

Other restricted funds

Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds

Transfer on conversion and from exisling trusts

DIfE Group capital grants transferred on conversion
DfE Group capital grants

Other capital donalions

Capital expenditure treated as grants to Site Trustess
Fixed assets purchased with capital grants

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds

Total unrestricted funds

Total funds

As restated
Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September Income Expenditure Losses & 31 August
2021 Transfers 2022
£ £ £ £ £
864,114 36,506,978 (37,440,222) 983,620 514,680
256,382 1,807,088 (2,023,318) 131,803 271,957
- 1,039,749 (985,023) (54,7286) -
46,641 70,405 (49,042) - 68,004
322,794 810,584 (911,952) 77,624 299,050
81,517 600,986 (624,809) 40,513 98,207
1.800 2,880,624 (3,480,645) 500,222 12,011
* 268,511 (196,201} 69,199 140,809
(29,460,000} - (8,982.000) 29,953,000 (8,489,000)
(27.886,752) 44,194,935 (54,693,910} 31,701,455 (6,684,272)
18,366,651 - 377,494 - 18,744,145
- - 47,258 - 47,259
721668 2,887,279 - (2,956,982} 651,965
- 225284 - - 225,284
- - (2,255,855) 2,255,855 -
1,358,055 - (285,008) 701,127 1,774,174
20,446,374 3,112,563 (2,116,110) - 21,442, 827
(7.440,378) 47,307,498 {56,810,020) 31,701,455 14,758,655
3,689,693 3,253,203 (427,801) (1.748.455) 4,766,640
3,689,693 3,253,203 {427,801) (1.748.455) 4,766,640
’3.750.585] 50,660,701 (57,237,821) 29,953,000 19,525,195
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16  Funds (continued)

Analysis of iemies by fund bal

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 were allocated as follows: As restated
Total Total
2023 2022
£ £
John Henry Newman CE England Academy, Littlemore 148,444 169,825
Grove CE Primary School 65,433 53,726
The Hendreds CE Primary School 284,260 275638
St Christopher's C of E Primary School, Cowley 516,228 466,112
Wheatley C of E Primary School 326,217 158,682
St Peter's C of E Middle School, Old Windser 272,130 178,489
Burchetts Green C of E Infants School 95,617 142 468
St Luke's C of E Primary School, Maidenhead 265,608 277,232
The Blake C of E Primary School, Witney 153,508 126,076
St Christopher's C of E Primary School, Langford 122,385 104,985
St Peter's C of E Primary School, Alvescot 67,532 50,358
North Leigh C of E Primary School 104,285 103,344
Bampton C of E Primary School 38,375 63,345
The Batt C of E Primary School, Wilney 91,802 98,577
Burford Primary School 47,14 112,105
Brize Norton Primary School 72,911 10,067
Halyport C of E Primary School 210,981 341,410
St Mary's C of E Infants School, Witney 56,574 38,946
Deddington C of E Primary School 91,380 68,881
Dr South's C of E Primary School, Islip 61,611 53,406
Datchet St Mary's C of E Primary Academy 177,620 88,012
Kidmere End C of E Primary School (108,209) 22,403
Leafield C of E Primary School 118,538 163,198
South Moreton Primary School 205,247 166,199
Or Radcliffe’s C of E Primary School, Steeple Astan 83,497 71,546
Tackley C of E Primary School 94 363 66,857
Wroxton C of E Primary School 34,112 (1,355)
Norih Hinksey C of E Primary School 106,668 81,090
St Marys C of E Primary School, Banbury 492,658 432 533
Northbourne C of E Primary School 217,961 243,130
St Nicholas C of E Primary School, Waliingford 63,181 101,269
Fir Tree Junior School, Wallingford 13,224 45,130
Wootton-by-Woodstock C of E Primary School - (10,979)
Benson C of E Primary School 225,728 201,350
Blewbury C of E Primary School 5,493 (43,538)
Christepher Rawiins C of E Primary 86,916 14,072
Tyndale Community School 235,567 217,564
St Frideswide C of E Primary School 213,819 170,337
New Christ Church C of E Primary School, Reading 37,271 87,491
New Town Primary School, Reading 137,183 103,054
St John's C of E Primary, Reading 351,211 310231
St Laurence C of E Primary School, Warborough 18,166 =
All Saints C of E Junior School, Maldenhead 127,768 -
Central services 1,076,764 1,148,102
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 7.119,556 6,571,368
Restricted fixed asset fund 23,158,349 21,442,827
Pension reserve 4,375,000 (8,489,000}
Total 25,902,905 19,525,195
Kidmore End C of E Primary School has had interim leadership arrangement in place this financial year, due to the long term ab ofa ber of the leadership team, which has

confributed to the financial pressures this school has been facing. The academy irusl’s school improvement and central finance teams continue to work closely with the leadership
team in this schoal, to ensure all measures are being taken to maintain the highest standards whilst working towards a sustainable balanced school budget.

Wootton by Woodstock CE Primary School closed on 31st August 2023, as detailed in the Trustees' report,
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17

Funds (continued)
Analysis of academies by cost

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
Teaching and

Educational Other Other Costs
Support Support Educational (excluding Total Total
Staff Costs Staff Costs PP depreciation) 2023 2022
£ E £ £ £ £
John Henry Newman CE England Academy 1,428,939 263,950 29,466 323,420 2,045,776 1,927,429
Grove CE Primary School 796,131 108,564 36,561 195,155 1,136,412 1,018,231
The Hendreds CE Primary School 521,455 56,370 22,196 226117 826,138 779,398
St Christopher's C of E Primary School, Cowley 1,511,058 204,728 20,323 393,266 2,129,375 2,147,106
Whealley C of E Primary School 967,238 160,265 19,977 252,008 1,399,489 1,263,312
51t Peter's C of E Middle School, Old Windsor 1,269,129 276,229 29,007 298,106 1,882,471 1,541,040
Burchetts Green C of E Infants School 322,484 57,045 7.119 84,817 471,465 473,767
St Luke's C of E Primary School, Maidenhead 1,279,573 240,673 40,428 416,942 1,977 616 1,814,093
The Blake C of E Primary School, Witney 1,458,882 223,526 29,466 306,720 2,018,594 1,906,880
St Christopher's C of E Primary School, Langfor £§15,810 141,785 14,891 138,080 810,576 737,898
St Peter's C of E Primary School, Alvescot 441,588 34,810 14,930 155,119 646,507 576,197
North Leigh C of E Primary Schoal 714,501 89,8692 12,495 228,048 1,044,938 997,858
Bampton € of E Primary Scheol 763,193 123,490 12,822 175,010 1,074,614 853,416
The Batt C of E Primary School, Wilney 1.272,144 104,832 46,328 249,031 1672,336 1,632,462
Burford Primary School 563,607 108,041 56,265 114,899 842,812 771,848
Brize Norton Primary School 466,174 73,606 17,231 145,279 702,290 765,155
Holyport C of E Primary School 931,434 215,557 46,062 259,376 1,452,429 1,301,871
St Mary's C of E Infants School, Witney 364,749 50,821 1,846 111,459 528,875 520,098
Deddinglon C of E Primary School 718,662 77,882 15473 262,333 1,074,350 1,021,086
Dr South's C of E Primary School, Islip 526,196 56,436 6,687 119,897 708,216 658,209
Datchet St Mary's C of E Primary Academy 767,672 153,997 17,731 211,922 1,151,322 1,286,680
Kidmore End C of E Primary School 710,658 112,809 9,699 203,755 1,036,921 972,178
Leafield C of E Primary School 463,750 62,129 44.218 124,323 694,420 604,996
South Moreton Primary School 500,819 103,465 17.639 138,887 768,810 722,899
Dr Radcliffe's C of E Primary School 823,283 129,313 17,014 177,882 1,147,502 1.113,522
Tackley C of E Primary School 447,127 55,086 14,716 154,610 671,539 532,004
‘Wroxton C of E Primary School 362,812 74,086 11,473 128,386 576,768 580,619
North Hinksey C of E Primary School 716,330 89,087 16,865 211,628 1,032,910 988,254
St Marys C of E Primary School, Banbury 893,389 64,937 25614 299,807 1,283,747 1,048,738
Northbourne C of E Primary School 1,287,880 178,180 26,882 399,644 1,892,597 1,746,770
St Nicholas C of E Primary School, Wallingford 709,520 147,013 7,582 188,931 1,053,055 1,016,847
Fir Tree Junior School, Wallingford 855,715 2238971 14,562 203,619 1,303,867 1,127,851
Wootton-by-Woodstock C of E Primary School 175,860 35,382 1,626 67,088 280,856 334,503
Benson CE Primary Schoal 975,623 183,284 9,394 225,426 1,393,727 1,240,875
Blewbury CE Primary School 441,732 118,929 a7 128,650 698,012 693,686
Christopher Rawlins CE Primary 894,233 85,859 12,842 232346 1225279 1.218615
Tyndale Community School 1,386,336 213911 38,863 417,004 2,056,114 1,893,209
St Frideswide C of E Primary School 1,280,521 206,743 32,375 437,762 2,047 401 1,875,780
New Christ Church CE Primary School, Reading 723,249 214,505 60,651 220,281 1,218,687 713,074
New Town Primary School, Reading 1,357 470 176,172 83,292 380,804 2,007,838 1,159,435
St John's CE Primary, Reading 1,388,466 379,915 54,759 353,413 2,176,554 1,312,816
St Laurence C of E Primary, Warborough 422,973 72,568 8,734 101,419 605,696 -
All Saints C of E Junior School, Maidenhead 530,363 106,209 13,379 153,060 803,011 -
Cenlral services 36,542 2,268,064 132 696,674 3,001.413 6,899,202
Academy Trust 34,983,284 8,220,130 1,029,485 10,323,426 54,556,325 51,829,709
Analysis of Net Assets between Funds
Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are represented by:
Restricted
Restricted Fixed
Unrestricted General Asset Total
Funds Funds Funds Funds
£ £ E E
Tangible fixed assets - - 20,805,493 20,805,493
Current assets 5,027 552 7,489 243 2,306,350 14,823,145
Current liabilities - {5,350,733) - (5,350,733)
Pension scheme liability - {4‘3?5,000! - !&.3?5!00”
Total net assets/({liabilities) 5,027,552 (2,236,490) 23,111,843 25,902,905
Comparalive infarmalion (as restated) in respect of the preceding period is as follows:
Restricted
Restricted Fixed As restated
Unrestricted General Asset Total
Funds Funds Funds Funds
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets - x 20,518,319 20,518,319
Current assets 4,766,640 6,934,042 924,508 12,625,190
Current liabilities - (5,129,314) - (5,129,314)
Pension scheme liability - 8,489,000 - (8,489,000)
Total net assetsi{liabilities) 4,766,640 - (6,684,272) 21,442,827 _  19,626195




Oxford Diocesan Schools Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

18

19

21

23

Capltal Commitments

2023 2022
£ £
Contracted for, but not provided in the financial slatements 464,376 229,480
Cc it ts under of ing leases
Operating Leases
At 31 August 2023 the total of the academy trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operaling leases was:
2023 2022
£ £
Amounts due within one year 29,671 23113
Amounis due between one and five years 51,876 18,303
81,547 42,416
Reconciliation of Net Expenditure to Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities As restated
2023 2022
£ £
Net (expendilura)income for the reporting period (as per the Statement of Financial Activities) 697,710 (6,677,120)
Adjusted for:
Depreciation charges (note 13) 666,133 604,587
Impairment charge - 1,414,849
Transfer of fixed assets to expenditure - 2,283
Capital grants from DIE and olher capital income (4,609,034) (2,887 279)
Interest receivable (nole 4) {1,109) (1,075)
Fixed assets transferrad from Local Authority on conversion (16,891) -
Fixed assets transferred from existing academy trust - (2,114,332)
Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions paid (see note 25) 890,000 4 544 000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance costs (see note 25) 373,000 554,000
LGPS deficit transferred on conversions and from existing academy trusis 303,000 3,884,000
(Increase)/decrease in debtars 1,145,632 (2.971,258)
(Decrease)fincrease in creditors 221,419 1,587 B56
Net Cash used in Operating Activities (330,141) (2,049,489)
Cash flow from Investing Activities 2023 2022
£ £
Dividends, interest and rents from investments 1,109 1.075
Purchase of tanglble fixed assets (936,416) (701,001)
Capital grants and other capital income 4,609,034 2,887 279
Net cash provided by Investing Activities 3,673,727 2,187,353
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents At 31 August At 31 August
2023 2022
£ £
Cash in hand and at bank 11,990,805 8,647,219
11,990,805 8,647,219
Analysis of changes in net debt
Cash flows Other non-cash At 31 August
At 1 September 2022 changes 2023
£ £ E £
Cash 8,647,219 3,343,586 - 11,990,805
Total 8,647,219 3,343,588 - 11,990,805
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Members' Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company In the event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after
helshe ceases to be a member, such amounl as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debls and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases lo be a member,

Pension and Similar Obligations

The academy trust’s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme England and Wales (TP3) for academic and related staff; and the Local
Government Pension Schemes (LGPS) for non-leaching staff, consisting of the Oxfordshire County Council Pension Fund which is managed by Oxfordshire County Council and the
Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund which Is managed by the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead, Both are multi-employer defined benefit pension schemes,

The LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the acadsmy trust, who were the employees Iransfsrred as part of the conversion from the maintained schools and new employees
who were eligible to, and did, join the in the ‘period. The obli in respect of employees who transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the
predecessor schools and the academy trust at the balance sheel date.

The latest actuarial TPS valualion results, as at 31 March 2020, were released in October 2023. The valuation result is due o be implemented from 1 April 2024, from this date
employer contribution rates will increase to 28.68% (including a 0.08% administration levy). The latest actuarial valuation of the LGPS was as at 31 March 2022,

Contributions amounting to £762,977 (2022: £683,542) were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 and are included within creditors.
Teachers' Pension Scheme
Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) Is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, Membership is automatic
for teachers in academies. All leachers have the oplion to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment,

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes conltributions, as a percentage of salary - these conlributions are credited to the Exchequer.
Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Pariiament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valualions and Employer
Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contribulions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent
on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors, The actuarial valuation of the TPS which was applied during the year ended 31 August
2023 was carried out as al 31 March 2016, The valuation report was published by the Depariment for Educalion on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent
consultation are:

Employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer administration levy)
Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assels (estimated
fulure contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million

the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return, The current SCAPE rale is 2.4% above the rate of CPI. assumed real rate of relumn is 2.4% in
excess of prices and 2% in excess of eamings. The rale of real eamings growth is assumed to be 2,2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%,
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Pension and Similar Obligations (continued)

The next valuation result is due 1o be implemented from 1 April 2024.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £4,143,126 (2022: £3,712,733).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set outin FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme, The academy trust has accounted for its contribulions to the scheme as if it were a
defined contribution schema. The academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Schemes

The LGPS' are funded defined benefit pension schemes, wilh the assets held in separale irustee-administerad funds. The total contribulion made for the year ended 31 August 2023
was £3,506,105 (2022: £2,811,028), of which employer's contributions totalled £2,728,111 (2022: £2,295 574) and employees’ conlributions totalled £777,994 (2022 £515,454). The
agreed minimum employer contribution rate in respect of the Oxfordshire County Council Pension Fund is 20.2% since April 2023 (20.5% - 2022) and in respect of the Royal County
of Berkshire Pension fund is 22.6% since April 2023 (21.6% - 2022).

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secrelary of Stale for Education, to a guarantee thal, in the event of academy closure, oulstanding Local Government Pension Scheme

liabilities would be mel by the Department for Education, The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013,

Oxfordshire County Council
At 31

Royal County of Berkshire

Principal Actuarial Assumptions At 31 At 31 AL 31
August August August August
2023 2022 2023 2022
Rate of increase in salaries 2.95% 3.05% 3.85% 3.95%
Rate of increase for pansions in paymentfinflation 2.95% 3.05% 2 85% 2.95%
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.20% 4.25% 5.30% 4.25%
Commutation of pensions (o lump sums 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%
The current mertality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortalily rates. The 1 life exg ions on It age 65 are:
At 31 August
At 31 August 2023 At 31 August 2022 At 31 August 2023 2022
Retiring today
Males 235 222 20.7 21
Females 24.8 245 236 238
Retiring in 20 years
Males 236 231 22 222
Females 26.7 26.1 25 253
Impact on present value of pension Impact on present value of pension
liabilities liabilities
Sensitivity analysis Al 31 August
At 31 August 2023 AL31 August 2022 At 31 August 2023 2022
£'000's £'000's £'000's £'000's
Discount rate +0.1% (659) (588) (175) (208)
Discount rale -0.1% 659 688 180 212
Martality assumption; 1 year increase 1,127 1,140 255 264
Monrtality assumplion: 1 year decreasa (1,127) (1,140) (248) (256)
Adjustment to long term salary increases +0.1% 40 45 9 13
Adjustment to lorg term salary increases -0.1% (40) (45) (9) (13)
Adjustment to pension increases and deferred revaluation +0.1% 633 650 175 2
Adjustment lo pension increases and deferred revaluation -0.1% (633) (650) 171) (196)
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25  Pension and Similar Obligations {continued)

The academy's share of the assets in the scheme were:

Equities

Other bonds

Property

Cash

Target Return Portfolio
Infrastructure

Longevity insurance

Total market value of assets

ised in the stat t of fi ial activities

g

Current service cost

Past service costs

Net interest cost

Admin expenses

Loss on assumption of net liabilities on business combinations
Total operating charge

Ri ement of net defined benefit oblig

Return on fund assels in excess of interest

Other acluarial gainsf{losses) on assels

Change in financial assumptions

Change in demographic assumptions

Experience gain/{loss) on defined benefit obligation
Actuarial gain/{loss) on defined benefit p i h

Changes in the pi t value of defined benefit q were as

At 1 September

Current service cost

Interest cost

Change in financial assumptions

Change in demographic assumptions
Experience gain on defined benefit obligalion
Employee contributions

Eslimated benefits paid net of transfers in
Pasl service coslts

Effect of business combinations and disposals
At 31 August

Changes in the fair value of y's share of sch assets:

At 1 September

Inlerest on assels

Return on assets less interest

Other actuarial gains/({losses)

Administration expenses

Contributions by employer including unfunded
Conlributions by scheme participants and other employers
Estimated benefits paid plus unfunded net of transfers in
Setilement prices received

At 31 August

Present value of defined benefit obligations
Fair value of share of scheme assels
Deficit in the schemes

Oxfordshire County Council Royal County of Berkshire
Fair value Fair value Fair value Fair value
at 31 August at 31 August at 31 August al 31 August
2023 2022 2023 2022
£ £ E £
18,326,160 16,772,250 5,101,000 3,808,000
4,072,480 3,354,450 958,000 940,000
2,545,300 2,012,670 763,000 815,000
508,060 223,630 59,000 103,000
- - 9,000
- 1,014,000 660,000
- (370,000) _ (247,000)
25,453,000 22,363,000 7,515,000 6,088,000
2023 2022
£ £
3,650,000 6,635,000
- 79,000
373,000 554,000
5,000 3,000
303,000 3.884 000
4,331,000 11,155,000
2023 2022
£ E
(1,208,000) {1,163,000)
896,000 -
10,389,000 30,914,000
1,065,000 309,000
{5,462,000) (107,000)
5,680,000 29,953,000
2023 2022
£ E
36,940,000 53,789,000
3,650,000 6,635,000
1,661,000 1,002,000
(10,389,000} (30,914,000)
(1,065,000) (309,000)
5,462,000 107,000
776,000 523,000
(537,000) (369,000)
. 79,000
845,000 6,297,000
37,343,000 36,940,000
2023 2022
£ £
28,451,000 24,329,000
1,288,000 448,000
(1,208,000) (1,163,000)
896,000 -
(5,000) (3,000)
2,765,000 2,173,000
776,000 623,000
(537,000} (369,000)
542,000 2,413,000
32,968,000 28,451,000
2023 2022
£ £
(37,343,000) {36,940,000)
32,968,000 28,451,000
(4,375,000) (8.489,000)
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Related Party Transacti

Owing to the nature of the demy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from local public and private sector organisations, fransactions may take place with
organisations in which the trustees have an interest. All transactions Involving such organisations are conducled in accordance with the requirements of the AFH, including notifying
the ESFA of all ransactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and oblain their approval whera required, and with the academy trust's financial regulations and normal procurement
orocedures relatina to connected and relaled partv transactions. The followina related partv transactions tock olace in the financial oeriod.

The Oxford Diocesan Board of Education ("ODBE") is a corporate member of the academy trust. Mrs K M Winrow is an unpaid director of the academy trust and also an unpaid
director of ODBE. During the year ended 31 August 2023, the academy trust paid £79,604 (2022: £55,853) lo ODBE for various support services, including training and SLA for
Church Schools. The services have been provided at no more than cost and ODBE has provided a statement of assurance confirmina this.

The academy trust agrees on an annual basis for ODBE to act as he body responsible for maintaining school buildings within the academy trust funded by the School Cendition
Allocation (SCA) made available to ODBE on behalf of ODST from the ESFA, ODBE charged project management fees for the works undertaken on the trust's premises during the
year lotalling £205,450 (2022: £204,680). These fees are entirely funded by the SCA funding allocated to the academy trust.

ODST charge ODBE for producing payslips through the combined payroll software, at cost. The charges during the year ended 31st August 2023 were £860 (2022: £1,084),

At the year-end ODBE owed the academy trust £284 (2022: £756), included within trade debtors. At the year-end ODST owed ODBE £95,940 (2022: £83,208), included in trade
creditors,

Mrs J A Dellar is the CEO and a direclor of the academy trust. Lee Bolton Monier Williams (“LBMW™), the firm acling as the academy trust's solicitors is considered to be a related
party as Mr H Dellar, an equity pariner of LBMW is her spouse, During the year ended 31 August 2023, LBMW invaiced fees for academy conversions, HR and refaled legal advice
totalling £17,702 (2022: £30,437). Al the year end the academy trust owed the LBMW £nil (2021: £nil). No decisions relating to the provision of legal services are made by the CEO,
and the services are provided at direct cost,

River Leamning Trust ("RLT") is a mulli-academy trust of which the ODBE is a corporate member. During the year ended 31 August 2023, RLT charged the trust £730 (2022: £nil) in
respect of staff training. At the vear end the academy trust owed RLT an amount of £nil (2022 Enil).

The Vale Academy Trust ("VAT") an academy trust of which the ODBE is a corporate member. During the year ended 31 August 2023, VAT charged the trusl £1,890 (2022 £3,187)
in respect of staff training and curriculum enrichment evenls. Al the year-end ODST owed VAT Enil (2022; £72).

Conversion to an academy trust

The following schools converted to academy frust status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operalions and assels and liabilities were transferred to the academy trust for Enil
consideration,

School name Date of conversion Local authority
St Laurence C of E Primary, Warborough 01 Oclober 2022 Oxfordshire County Council
All Saints C of E Junior School, Maidenhead 01 January 2023 Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead

The transfers have been accounted for using the acquisition method. The assels and liabilities transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under
the appropriate headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as the net income in the Statement of Financial Activities as Donations - transfer from local authority on
canversion,

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assels and liabilities trar d on the jon of the sck and an analysis of their recognition in the SOFA:
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset
Funds Fund Funds Total
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets
Other tangible fixed assats - - 16,891 16,891
Budaget surplus / (deficit) on LA funds 83,507 - 45,695 129,202
Budget surplus/{deficit) on Other funds - - 21,040 21,040
LGPS pension deficit - (303,000) - (303,000)
Net assets/(liabilities) 83,507 (303,000) 83,626 (135,867)
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset
Funds Fund Funds Total
£ £ £ £

St Laurence C of E Primary, Warborough
Tangible fixed assels

Other tangible fixed assels - - 2,699 2,699
Budget surplus / (deficit) on LA funds 83,507 - - 83,507
Budget surplus/(deficit) on Other funds - - 21,040 21,040
LGPS pension deficit - (228,000) - (228,000)
Net assets/(liabilities) B3 507 Q_?B,DCIU] 23739 (120,754,

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset
Funds Fund Funds Total
£ £ £ £
All Saints C of E Junior School, Maidenhead
Tangible fixed assels

Qther tangible fixed assels - - 14,192 14,192
Budget surplus / (deficit) on LA funds - - 45,695 45,695
LGPS pension deficit - (75,000) - (75,000)

Net assetsi(labilities) - {75.000) 50887 (15,113)
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Post balance sheet events
There were no post balance sheel evenls.

Prior year comparative Statement of Financial Activities

Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants
Transfer from existing academy trust
Charitable activities:
Funding for the academy trust's educalional operalions
Other trading activities
Investments

Total
Expenditure on:
Transfer from local authority on conversion
Transfer from existing academy trust
Raising Funds
Charitable activities:

Grants

Academy trust educational operations
Total
Net income / (expenditure)

Transfers between funds

Other ised gains /(I 1
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes

Net movement in funds

As restated

Restricted Restricted As restated
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset Total
Funds Funds Funds 2022

E £ £ £

288,290 268,511 3,112,563 3,669,364
7,587 z 2 7,587
1.245619 43,926,424 - 45,172,043
1,710,632 - - 1,710,632
1.075 - # 1,075
3,253,203 44,194,935 3,112,563 50,560,701
(5981,998) 3,884,000 (2,161,521) 1,130,411
583.511 - - 583,611

- - 2,255,855 2,255,855

436,288 50,808,910 2,021,846 53,268,044
427 801 54,683,910 2,116,110 57,237,821
2,825,402 (10,498,975) 996,453 (6,677,120)
(1,748,455) 1,748,455 - -
- 28,953,000 - 29,953,000

1,076,947 21,202,480 - 996,453 23&?5,8&0
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